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HISAR SPINNING Mil i q LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTtnw iM
OF THE COMPANIES AC? 2013 *

Item No. 2

A brief profile of the Non Executive Director:

«*. NiW|C fDin: 01741446)

Age: 38 years as on 31.03.2019.

Qualification: Graduate.

He
of

the
and fs

Remuneration last drawn by such person: Nil

Date of first appointment on the Board: 29.12.2016

Shareholding in the company: 160400 Equity Shares.

SShrmoM^^
Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year: 5

Other Directorships: Avon Meters Private Limited

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards: Nil

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 06.09.2019
Regd. Office:

9th. KM Stone. Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

(Anurag Gupta)

Managing Director
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Folio No.

No. of share(s) held
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Director's Report

Dear Shareholders.

Highlights

Total income Year ended

31.03.2018

2889.35

434.81

61.45

Year ended
31-03.2019

Excepiional Hems

Prorn before tax

Less: Tax Expenses

-Citrreni lax
■

-Deferred lax
■

Profrt after tax

Earnings Porequity share

OPERATIONAL*

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line wKh the requirements o( Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressaf) Act. 2013. An internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has
been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual.

temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The said policy is uploaded on Ihe Company's website
www.hisar5pinningmills.com.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the Calender year 2018:

a) No. of Complaints received in the year 1

b) No. of complaints disposed off during the year 1

c) No. of cases pending for more than 90 days: NIL

d) No. of workshops or awareness program against sexual harassment carried out: 1

e) Nature of action taken by the employer NA

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cosl records as specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act.
2013. Is not applicable to the Company and accordingly such accounts and records are not made and maintained.

MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL OATE OF REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred
between the end of Ihe financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report

other than those disclosed in the financial stalements.

RISK MANAGEMENT POUCY

Risk management is a continuous process across the organization designed to Identify, assess and frame a response

to threats that affect the achievement of its objectives. II enables management to prepare for risks before they devorve
to improve the operational effectiveness. Determination of the risk appetite allows managemenl to deploy resources
according to the need. The Company firmly believes that to ensure effective risk managemenl. there ought to be nsk
management plans to handle the risks based on the priorities and challenges of the business. The factors involved in
identified risks must be considered and the accuracy of assessment is very important. This implies. If proper nsk
managemenl is implemented as a best practice then massive capital losses can be prevented. The success of the Risk
Managemenl Framework depends on the efforts taken to mitigate/ reduce either the probability or consequence of Ihe
risk/ threat. Therefore considering the same. Company's Risk Managemenl Policy includes three key elements:

I Risk Assessment

I. Risk Management and Risk Mitigation

II. Risk Monitoring

Risks are analyzed, considering likelihood and impact, as a basis for determining how they should be managed
effectively Adhering the same Company has constituted Risk Management Committee and adopted an effective Risk
Management Policy in Its place to assess, mitigate and to monitor the different risks exposed to the industry in which it
operates. Risk managemenl policy of the company is available at company's website www.hisarspinningmills.com.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT 1 REMUNERATION AND OTHER PRESCRIBED MATTERS

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and non-executive and independent directors to maintain
the independence of the Board, and separale its funclions of governance and managemenl. As of March 31, 2019. the
Board had six members, two of whom are executive directors, one is a non executive director and three independent
directors. One of the executive directors of Ihe Board is a woman director.

The policy of the Company on directors' appointment and remuneration, including the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes. Independence of a director and other matters, as required under sub-section (3) of
Section 178 of the Companies Act. 2013, is available on the website of the company, at www.htsarapinningmills.com.

We affirm thai the remuneration paid to Ihe directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and Remuneration

Policy of the Company. •
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

Your Company maintains an adequate and effective Iniemal Control system commensurate wilh its size and

complexity. Internal control systems provide, among other things, a reasonable assurance thai transactions are

executed with Management authorization and that Ihey are recorded in an material respects to permit preparation or

financial statements In conformity wtth established accounting principles and that the assets of your Company are

adequately safeguarded against significant misuse or toss.

During Ihe year under review, the Company conlinued to implement their suggestions and recommendations to

improve Ihe internal financial conlrol environment. Their scope of work inler-alia includes review of-operational

efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. In addition

to statutory audil. Ihe financial controls of the Company at various locations are reviewed by the Internal Auditors, who

repon their findings to the Audit Committee of ihe Board. The Audit Committee actively reviews Ihe adequacy and

effectiveness of Internal control system and suggests further strengthening the same, wherever required.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

Ouring the year under review, there is no material order(s) passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal impacting the
going concern status and company's operation in future. ,

DISCLOSURE REGARDING COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURE) RULES 2014

The paid up listed equity share capital of the Company as at 31" March 2019 was Rs. 3.73.50.000/- comprising of

37.35,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. As required under Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules 2014,

during the year under review, the Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity

shares, preference shares and employee slock options and also nol made any provision for purchase of its own shares

by employees or by trustees.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VOTING RIGHT NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY THE EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, mere is NIL disclosure as required under provisions of section 67(3) of Companies Act
2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee constituted by the Company functions in accordance with the terms of reference as sel out under Ihe

provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement read with provisions of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 S rules

made Ihereunder and additional responsibilities assigned to it by Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee

reviews Ihe Internal audit reports and findings of internal auditors along with the comments ol management. The

functions of the Audit Committee among others include approving and Implementing the audit procedures, effective

supervision of financial reporting system. Whistle Blower Mechanism, internal conlrol and procedures, recommending

appointment of Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to Board and also ensuring compliances with regulatory guidelines.

The Board has constituted Ihe Audil Committee comprises of following:

S.NO.

1

2

3

NAME

Sh. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta, Non-executive and Independent Director

Sh. Anuraq Gupta, Managing Director

Sh. Sudesh Kumar Garg. Non-executive and Independenl Director

DESIGNATION

Chairman

Member

Member

The other relevant delalls of Audil Committee are given under Corporate Governance Report annexed with Director's

Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism named "Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism" to deal with instance of fraud and

mismanagement, if any. The details of Ihe Policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also available

at company's website www.hisarspinningmills.com.
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as
thai of its committees, individual Direclors, including the Chairman of (he Board in compliance with the Companies Ad

2013 and Listing Regulations. The exercise was carried oul through a structured evaluation process covering various

aspects ol Ihe Boards functioning such as composition of the Board, its committee & members, their experience 4

competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, governance and also in accordance with Performance

Evafeation Policy of Company. Broadly the performance of Non-lndependent^xecutive/Whole Time Diredor(s) was

evaluated on the basis of Iheir own performance, expertise, inlelligence. their qualilative 4 quantitative contribution

towards operational achievements, organizational performance etc. The performance of Non-Executive Independent
Direclors were evaluated on the basts of their constructive participations in Board/Committee/General meetings, their

Informed & balanced decision-making, ability to monitor financial controls & systems, & certain allied parameters. The

performance evaluation of various Board Committees constituted under Companies Ad & Listing Agreement was made

on the basis of their respective terms of reference, discharge of functions, governance etc.

Disclosure of information's as required under rule 5(11 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014

The Provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014 requiring particulars of the employees In receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 102 Lakhs per year to be

disclosed in the Report of Board of Direclors are not applicable to the Company as none of the employees was in

receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 102 Lakhs during the financial year 2018-19.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of (he Companies Act.

2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and.Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

are provided in the Annexure forming part ol the Annual Report. Having regard lothe provisions of Section 136(1) read

with its relevant proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being

sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available tor inspection at the Registered Office of the

Company during working hours and any member interested in oblaining such information may write to the Company

Secretary and the same will be furnished free of cost.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has affirmed that the remuneration is as per the -

remuneration policy of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management discussion and analysis report, as required by Listing Regulations, forms part of the Annual Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to convey their apprecialion to all of the Company's employees for their enormous efforts as well as

their colledrve contribution to the Company's performance, The Directors would also like to thank shareholders.

customers, dealers, suppliers, Financial Institutions, bankers. Government and all Ihe other business associates for the

continuous support given by them to ihe Company and their confidence in its management.

By order of the Board of Directors

So7- Sd/-

Place: Chandigarh (Anurag Gupta) (Sapna Kansal)

Dated: September 06,2019 Managing Director Executive Director

OIN-O01928S8 DIN-06892410
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H1SAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

FORM NO. AOC.2

Form (or disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length

transactions under third proviso thereto (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1 .Delails ol contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis -

(a)Name(s) ol the related party and nature of relationship:
(b)Nature of contracts/arrangemenls/transactlons:

(c)Duration ol the contracts/arrangements/transaclions:

(d)Salient terms ot the contrads or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(e)Justification tor entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions:

(f)date(s) of approval by the Board:

(g)Amount paid as advances, if any:
(h)Date on which the special resolulion was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188:

NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's lenglh basis

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

(a)Name(s) of the relaled party and

nature of relationship:

(b)Nature of contracts/

arrangements/ transactions:

(c) Duration of the contracts/

arrangements/transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or

arrangements or transactions

including the value, if any:

(e)Dale(s) ol approval by She Board,

if any:

(f)Amount paid as advances, if any:

Mr. Naveen Kansal -

Husband of Mrs. Sapna

Kansal, Whole Time

Director.

Employment

Permanent employment

General terms of

employment as applicable

on other employees.

29.12.2016

Nil

Usha Yarns Limited -

Common Managing

Director and two

relatives of Executive

Directors are Directors

in Usha Yams Limited

and common promoter

shareholders

Purchase ol goods

Annual

Purchase of goods at

market value

Omnibus Approval on

22.05.2018

Nil

Usha Yams Limited -

Common Managing

Director and two

relatives of Executive

Directors are Directors

in Usha Yams Limited

and common promoter

shareholders

Settlement of liabilities

One lime

Actuals

22.05.2018

Nil

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: September 06, 2019

SdS-

(Anurag Gupta)

Managing Director

DIN-00192S88

Sd/-

(Sapna Kansal)

Executive Director

DIN-06892410
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Comorate Governance Report

1. Company's philosophy on code of Governance

Corporate Governance is a set of system, process and principles which ensure thai a Company Is governed in the best
interest of all stakeholders. The objective of Good Corporate Governance is to ensure the Board's commitment towards
transparent management to maximize long term value lor the Company's shareholders of all stakeholders. We believe

, thai good Corporate Governance emerges from the application ol the best and sound management practices and
compliance with the laws coupled with adherence to the highest standards of transparency and business ethics.

2. Board or Directors

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors so as
to have a balanced structure. As on 31" March 2019. the Board of Directors consists of six Directors, out of which two
are Promoter Directors {Managing Director and a non executive Director), one Non - Executive Woman Director and
three are Independent Non-Executive Directors. None of the Directors on the board is a member on more than 10
committees and Chairman of more than 5 committees as specified in SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremenls) Regulations 2015 ("hereinafter referred lo as Listing Regulations"), across all the companies .n which
Ihey are Directors The necessary disclosures regarding commitlee memberships have been made by all the Directors.

' The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149 of Companies
Act 2013 and rules made there under and meet with requirements of Listing Regulations.

During Itie financial year 2018-19. five Board meetings were held. The meetings were held on 22- May. 2018 U>-
Auaust 2018 5m September, 2018, 14* November. 2018. and 14" February. 2019. As stipulated by Code of
Independent Directors under Companies Act 2013 and under Listing Regulations, a separate meot.ng of independent
directors was held on 14"1 February, 2019 to review the performance of Non-independent directors including the
Chairman and the Boards as a whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of
follow of information between Management and the Board. All Independent Directors were present in the sa»d meelmo.

The names and categories of Directors on the board, their attendance at Board Meetings during the year and at the last
Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships' Committee memberships/ Chairmanship held by them in

other Companies are given below:

Nn m nirprtnnthin and Committee Membership/Chairmanship as on 31.03 2019:- ,

Name of Director

Smt. Sapna

Kansal

Sti. Anurag Gupta

Sh. Mithlesh

Kumar Gupta

Sh. Sudesh Kumar

Garg

Sh. Sandeep

Suri

Sh. Nitchil Goel

Category

ED

ED/MD

INED

INED

INED

NED

Attendance

Particulars

Board

Meeting

5

5

5

5

5

5

Last

AGM

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No. ot

Directorship

Other

Directorship

Nil

1

Nil

Nil

Nil

1

No. of Membership/ Chairmanship in

Committees*

Membership

1

2

Nil

1

NIL

NIL

Chairmanship

Nil

Nil

1

Nil

NIL

1

Total

1

2

1

1

NIL

1

■ INED : Independent Non Executive Director

NED : Non Executive Director

MD : Managing Director (Executive)

ED : Executive Director
•The committees considered for the above purpose are Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

None of the Directors ol the company is a director ol any other listed company.
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

3. INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

The Board has complete access to all information about the Company. All the meetings are conducted as per well

designed and structured agenda. All the agenda Herns are backed by necessary supporting information including

minimum Information as slipuiated under Regulation 17(7) of Listing Regulations to the extent His applicable & relevant

and documents to enable the Board to take informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of ihe meetings of all Ihe

Board Committees for the information of Board. The Board reviews the declarations/reports made by the Management

regarding compliance with applicable laws on quarterly basis as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify

instances of non-compliances, if any. Post meetings, all imporiani decisions taken at the meeiing are communicated lo
the concerned officials and departments.

4. MAXIMUM DIRECTORSHIP & TENURE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in compliance wHh the Companies Act 2013. The Company has

issued formal letters of appointment to all the Independent Directors. Al the time of appointment of an independent

.director. It was ensured that the number of Boards on which such independent director serves is restricted to seven

listed companies as an independenl director and three listed companies as an Independenl director in case such

person is serving as a whole-time (executive) direclor of a listed company. The lerms £ condttlons of appointment of

independent directors are available on Company's website viz. www.hisarsplnningmills.com.

5. Code of Conduct

The Company is committed lo conduct its business in accordance with the pertinent laws, rules and regulations and

with the highest standards of business ethics. The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members

and Senior Management of the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on Company's website viz.

www.hlsarspinningmills.com. All Board members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with

Ihe Code. A declaration signed by Sh.Anurag Gupta. DIN 00192888. Managing Director of the Company lo this effect is
enclosed at the end of this report.

6. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation. 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Condud for

Prevention of Insider Trading. The Coda is applicable lo Promoters and Promoter's Group, all Directore, KMP"s and

such Designated Employees etc. who are expected lo have access lo unpublished price sensitive Information relating

lo Company. The Code lays down guidelines advising them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made

while dealing with the shares of Company and cautioning them about the consequences of violations. The Company

Secretary is responsible for implementation of this code. During the year under review, there has been due compliance

with the said code. The Company has also formulated a Code of Practices and Procedures lor Fair Disclosure of

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and policy and procedure for inquiry in case of leak / suspected leak of un

published Price Sensitive Information, in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as

amended. The same is also posted on Company's websHe viz. www.hisarspinningmills.com.

7. MD and CFO Certification

As per Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations. Sh. Sharad Goel. Chief Financial Officer (CFO) & Sh.Anurag Gupta, DIN

00192888. Managing Director of Ihe Company have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Listing Regulations

certifying that the financial statements and Ihe cash flow statement do not contain any materially untrue statement and

these statements represent a true and fair view of the Company's affairs. The said certificate is attached herewHh and

forms part of the Annual Report.

8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board ol Directors have constituted various Board Committees In compliance of Companies Act as well as Listing

Regulations/Listing AgreemenI to deal with specific areas and activities as stipulated under the Companies Ad and

Listing Obligations. The Board Committees meet al regular Intervals, lakes necessary steps to perform its

duties/functions entrusted by the Board.

(A) Audit Committee

Audit Committee fundions in accordance with the lerms ol reference as sel out under Listing Regulations read with

provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act. 2013 & rules made there under and additional responsibilities
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assigned to it by Board of Directors of Ihe Company. The Committee reviews the internal audit reports and findings of
internal auditors along with the comments of management. The functions of the Audit Committee among others, include
approving and Implementing the audit procedures, eneclrve supervision of financial reporting system, Whistle Blower
Mechanism internal control and procedures, recommending appointment of Statutory Auditors. Cost Auditors to Board
and also ensuring compliances with regulatory guidelines. The composition, names of members, chairperson,
particulars of the meetings and attendance of Ihe members during the financial year are as below:

During the financial year 2018-19. four Audit Committee meetings were held on May 22. 2018. August 14. 2018.

November 14. 2018 and February 14. 2019.

S.NO.

1.

2.

3.

NAME

Sh. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta. Non-executtve and Independent

Director

Sh. Sudesh Kumar Garg, Non-executive and Independenl

Director .

Sh. Anurag Gupta. Managing Director

DESIGNATION

Chairman

Member

Member

NO. OF MEETINGS

ATTENDED DURING

THE YEAR 2018-2019

4

4

4

The Statutory Auditors and internal Auditors were Invitees to Ihe meetinos. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to

the Audit Committee.

(B). Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions in accordance wfth ihe lerms of reference as set out under
Lisling Regulations read with provisions of Section 175 of Companies Act. 2013 1 rules made there under The
functions of Nomination and Remuneration Committee include formulailon of criteria for determining qualifications.
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of D.redors a poltcy relating to
remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formulat.on of criteria for evaluatwn ol
perlormance of independent directors and the board of directors, devising a policy on divers.ty of board of directors.
identifying, persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appoinled in sentor management in
accordance with criteria laid down and recommend to the board ol directors their appolntmeni and removal etc. During
the financial year 2018-2019. one meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on March 25.2O1B.

S.NO.

1

2

3

NAME

Mr. Sudesh Kumar

Independent Director

Garg.

Mr. Nikhil Goel. Non Executive

Director

Mr. Millesh Kumar

1ndependent Director

Gupta.

Non

Non

Non

Execulive

Independent

Execulive

DESIGNATION

Chairman

Member

Member

NO. OF MEETINGS

ATTENDED DURING THE

YEAR 2018-2019

1

1

1

Remuneration Policy

The objective of this Policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and
retain talent The Company has adopted and implemented the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act. 2013 on
the requirement of Ihe Committee to recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors.

KMPs and other employees.

I) Remuneration ol Non-Executive Directors

No remuneration was paid to the Non-Execulive Directors during the year 2019-19.

it) Remuneration of Executive Directors

The details ol remuneration paid to the Execulive Directors during the year 2018-19 are given below:
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

Name ot Directors

Mr. Anurag Gupta,

Managing Director

Mrs. Sapna Kansal

Salary

15.00

15.00

Perquisites'

-

-

Commission

■

■

Total

15.00

15.00

There is no Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) In the Company os on 31" March 2019. Further, there are no

pecuniary relationships or transactions ol Non-Executive Director vis-a vis the Company which has potential conflict
with the Interest ol the Company at large.

(C). Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The StakehokJere Relationship Committee functions in accordance wflh the terms of reference as sel oul under
provisions ol Listing Regulations read with provisions ol Section 178 of the Companies Act. 2013 & rules made there

under i.e. redressing of Shareholders/Investors complaints, regarding lo share transfers, non-receipl of balance

sheel/dlvidend by the shareholders etc. During the financial year 2018-19, four Stakeholders Relationship Committee

meelings were held on May 22, 2018, August 14, 2018, November 14, 2018 and February 14. 2019.. The composition,

names ol the members, chairperson, particulars ol the meetings and attendance of the members during the year are as

below:

S.NO

1.

2.

3.

NAME OF MEMBERS

Mrs. Sapna Kansal. Non Executive Director

Sh. Anurag Gupta, Executive Director

Sh. Nikhil Goel, Non-execulive Director

DESIGNATION

Member

Member

Chairman

NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

DURING THE YEAR 2018-2019

4

4

4

During the financial year, the request for transfer/ demat / remat of shares, change of address etc have been duly

etTected. During (he year, Iwo complaints from [he shareholders were received and resolved. Hence no grievance was
pending at the end of the financial year.

Details of the Compliance Officer of the Company for SEBI/ Stock Exchange/ROC related issues etc.

Mrs. Nikila Singla (Appointed w.e.l. 01.02.2019)

Mr. Verinder Kamal Sood (Resigned w.e.f. 31.01.2019)

Ms. Manm'eet Kaur (Resigned w.e.f. 11.06.2018)
(D). Risk Management Committee:

The Listing Regulations in this respect are nol applicable lo the company.

9. General Body Meetings

The last Ihree Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under-

YEAR

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

VENUE

9"1 KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road,

V.P.ODabra(Hisar)

9™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road.

V.P.O Dabra (Hisar)

9™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road.

V.P.O Dabra (Hisar)

DATE

29/09/2018

28/09/2017

30/09/2016

TIME

10.00 A.M.

10.00 A.M.

12.00 Hrs.

WHETHER ANY SPECIAL

RESOLUTION PASSED

Yes

No

No

No Postal ballots were used for voting in these meetings. At Ihe forthcoming AGM, there is no item on the agenda that

needs approval by Postal balots.

18



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

10. Subsidiary Company

During trie year ended 31" March. 2019. neither the Company, has any subsidiary nor any material listed / unlisted

subsidiary company.

11. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company's Risk Management Policy is available at company's website www.hisarspinnlngmilts.com.

12. Disclosures

a) Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions of the Company are dealt with in accordance with Related Party Transactions Policy of

Company and as per provisions ol section 188 of Companies Aa 2013 4 rules made there under and as per Listing

Regulations. All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for approval by

specifying the nature, value, terms and conditions of the transactions etc. Omnibus approval Is obtained for the

transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of all related parly transactions lor which omnibus

approval has obtained are presented before She Audit Committee as well as to Board on quarterly basis. Although all

related party transactions are en Iered in ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis. There are no materially

significant related party transactions made by the Company with ils promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel,

their relatives etc. thai may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Suitable disclosures as required by ihe Accounting Standards (AS 18) are disclosed in Notes 10 Accounts in the Annual

Report. The Related Party Transactions Policy of Company available on the Company's website:

www.hisarspinningmitts.com.

b) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment In preparailon of Financial Statements

The Company has followed all relevanl Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of Companies Act 2013 & rules

made there under and laid down by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, while preparing Financial Statements.

cl Details of non-compliance bv the listed entity, penalties, striciures imposed bv slock exchanoe(s) or the board or any

statutory authoriiv. on any matter related to capital markets, during the last Ihree years

During the last three years, there were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any

Statutory Aulhority for non-compliance of any matter related lo Ihe capital markets.

dl Whistle Blower Pollcv/Vioil Mechanism

The Company has adopled Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary mechanism for employees to

report concerns about unethical behavior. This policy is reviewed quarterly by the Audit Committee to check the

effectiveness ol the policy 4 related matters. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Commitiee. The

relevant details of Whistle Blower Policy are given under the Director's Report and same is available on the Company's

website: www.hisarspinnlngmllls.com.

2el Details of compliance with mandBtorv reouirements and adoption ol the non-mandatorv requirements

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements. The Company has not adopted non-

mandatoryrequirements.

I) Subsidiary Company

During the year ended 31" March, 2019, neither the Company has any subsidiary nor any material listed/umisled

subsidiary company.

ol independent Director's Declarations

All Independent Directors have confirmed lhal they meet the criteria of 'Independence' as stipulated under the

Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.
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hi Disclosures bv Senior Management & Kev Managerial Personnel

Senior Managemenl and Key Managerial Personnel have made disclosure to the Board relating to all material, financial
and other transactions stating lhat Ihey did not have any personal interest that could result in a conflict with the interest
or the Company al large. The material, financial and commercial transactions where Key Managerial Personnel have

personal interesl forms part ol the disclosure on related parties referred to in Notes lo Annual Accounts.

13. Performance evaluation of Board of Directors

During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and effectiveness as well as

thai of its Committees and individual Directors. Including the Chairman of the Board. For Board and its Committees, the

exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Boards tunctioning

such as composition of the Board 4 committees, experience « competencies, performance of specilic duties 4

obligations, governance issues etc. The Performance evaluation of Non-independent directors including the Chairman

was carried out by Independent Directors in ihelr separate meellng. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation

results, which reflected the overall engagement and effectiveness of the Board and its Committees. The necessary

details regarding criteria of performance evalualion Is menlloned under Director's Report. The Performance Evaluation

Policy of Board of Directors Is available on Company's website viz. www.hisarspinningmills.com.

Since the Directors were satisfied with the evalualion results, there Were' no observations in the board evalualion

carried out for the year, hence no action was proposed. The previous year's observalions in the board evaluation were

nil and hence no action was warranted.

14. Familiarisation Programme / Induction for Independent Directors

At the Board Meetings, apart from the regular agenda items, it is ensured that the Board members are provided a deep

and thorough insight into the business model of Ihe Company and updates either by way of presentation ol business

units or otherwise. The Board members get an open forum for discussion and share their experience. At the time of

appointing an Independenl Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him/her, which inter alia explains the role,

function, duties, responsibilities expected of him/her as a Director of the Company and expected time commitments. As

required under Listing Regulations, Company has conducted a familiarization programme for its independent directors

under which the necessary information was provided to familiarize them with the nature, adivitles, products of the

Company and also about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company. The details of familiarization Programme

imparted lo Independent Directors is provided on the website of the Company at www.hisarspinningmiHs.com.

15. Skills' Expertise; Competence of the Board of Directors

Core skills /expertise/ compelencies identified by the board of directors as required in the context of its business(es)

and sector(s) for it to function effectively and those actually available with the board along with the Directors who

Names ol Directors/ Skills

Mr. Anuraq Gupta

Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Gupta

Mr. SandeepSuri

Mr. Slidesh Kumar Gam

Mr. NikhilGoel

Mrs. Sapna Kansal

Creative eye

10

6

8

8

9

10

Leadership

10

S

6

6

9

10

Technical knowledge

of the product

10

7

7

7

9

10

Managing

Staff

10

10

8

■8

9

10

Marketing

10

8

B

8

10

10

The above points are allotted lo the directors out of 10 basts points.

16. Confirmation ol Independence of Independent Directors

The Board o( Directors has confirmed that in their opinion, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are Independent ol the

management.

17. Resignation of Independent Directors)

No Independenl Director resigned from the Board of the Company during the year under review.
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18. Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee have formulaled Board Diversity Policy in accordance with Ihe Listing

Regulations. Under Ihe said policy, it is recognized thai a Board composed of appropriately qualified people with broad

range of experience relevant lo ihe business ol the Company is important to achieve elective corporate governance

and sustained commercial success of the Company. In order to ensure that the Company's boardroom has appropriate

balance of skills, experience and diversity ot perspectives that are imperative for the execution of its business strategy,

the Company shall while selecting (he Board Members consider a number of factors, including but not limited lo age,

culture, functional skills, industry/professional experience, financial literate and integrity elc.The ultimate decision will

be based on merit and contribution that Ihe selected candidates will .bring to the Board.

19. Means ot Communications

The quarterly, half yearly S annual financial results, notices etc. are published in widely circulating national & local daily

newspapers. The Pioneer in English edition and Vyapar Bharti in Hindi Edition. The same are also being posted on the

websile of BSE www.bseindla.com under Scrip Code 521068 and also on Ihe website of the company.

20. General Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting at 10:00 Hre. on 30* day of September, 2019 at Registered Office ol the Company at 9* KM

Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road, V.P.O Dabra (Hisar).

Financial Calendar

Dale of Book Closure

Dividend Payment Date

Listing on Stock Exchange

Scrip Code

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

CDSLISIN No.

1" April, 2018 to 31" March, 2019

25.09. 2019 to 30.09.2019

(both days inclusive)

N.A.

Bombay Slock Exchange Limited (8SE)

521068

L17112HR1992PLC031621

INE689E01014

Annual listing fee for the year 2018-2019 has duly been paid lo Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Market price data - High and Low during each month on BSE in the financial year 2018-19. Stock code - 521068

(Source: www.bseindia.com)

Months

April, 2018

May, 2018

June, 2018

July, 2018

August, 2018

September, 2018

October, 2018

November, 2018

December, 2018

January, 2019

February, 2019

High

21.40

23.55

-

-

19.05

15.05

11.40

11.37

14.47

16.73

21.40

Low

21.40

20.05

■

-

15.55

12.00

10.83

11.37

11.93

15.19

17.45

Closed

21.40

20.05

-

15.55

12.00

10.83

11.37

14.47

J 16.73

21.40

Shares

200

4100

■

-

9500

1000

400

300

500

600

4900
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39000

V V "V V V" "v•tt' V *v* TT t:

I Low

-BSE

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Share Transfer System

Compliance Officer

M/s Indus Portfolio Private limited

G-65, BaliNagar, New Delhi-110015

Shares lodged in physical form with Ihe RTA directly

or through Company, are processed and returned,

duly transferred, within fifteen days normally, except

in cases which are under objection.

In respect of shares held In dematerialised mode, ihe

Iransfer takes place Instantaneously between the

transferor, Iransferee and Ihe Depository Participant

through electronic debit/credrt of the accounts involved.

Mrs. Nikita Singla (Appointed w.e.f. 01.02.2019)

Mr. verinder Kamal Sood (Resigned!w.e.f. 31.01.2019)

Ms. Manmeet KaurSihola (Resigned w.e.f. 11.06.2018)

E-mail ID'S :

Distribution of shareholding as on 31" March. 2019.

hsml2000(fflredlffmaII.corn

Range or Shares

0-500

501-1000

1001-5000

5001-10000

10001-20000

20001-30000

30001-40000

40001-50000

No. of

Shareholders

9973

143

67

9

8 r

6

0

3

% of Shareholders

97.55

1.40

0.66

0.09

0.08

0.06

0.00

0.03

No. of Shares

1451030

115100

130800

67700

123500

152680

0

134500

% of Shareholding

38.85

3.08

3.50

1.81

3.31

4.09

0.00

3.60
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Range ot Shares

50001 -100000

Above 100000

No. of

Shareholders

7

7

10223

% of Shareholders

0.07

0.07

100

No. of Shares

460200

1099490

3735000

% of Shareholding

12.32

29.44

100

Shareholding Panem as on 31** March, 2019.

Category

Promolers/Promoler Group

FI's/FII's/ Banks/ Mutual Funds

Indian Public

Others

Shares held by Custodian S against which

Depository Receipts have been issued

Total

No. of shares

1885870

-

1849130

-

-

3735000

Percentage

50.49

-

49.51

-

-

100

Details of shareholding ol Directors in Ihe Company as on 31.03.2019.

Name of Director

NIKHIL GOEL

ANURAG GUPTA

SAPNAKANSAL

No. ol shares held

160400

184250

63100

Demateriallsatlon of shares

Plani(s) Location

Address for correspondence

E-mail ID'S

Credit Ratings

OTHER DISCLOSURES

22.18.770 (59.40%) shares

9* K.M. Slone. Hisar Bhrwani Road.

V.P.O. Dabra (Hisar) 125005

Hisar Spinning Mills limited

7" K.M. Slone, Hisar Bhrwani Road.

V.P.O. Dabra (Hisar) 125005

Ph. 01662-260397 Fax: 91-1662-280397

hsml2000@rediffmall.com

No) Applicable.

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the

interests of listed entity at large

There is no such related party Iransaction that may have polenUal conflict with ihe Interests of Ihe listed enllty at

laige.

b) Details ol non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock

exchange (s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during last

three years

No major penalty was levied on the company Dy any statutory authority.

c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel was

denied access to the Audit Committee

The company hss revised the vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy and the same is also disclosed on the

website of the company at www.hisarspinningmills.com and displayed ai the conspicuous place in the company.

Further, we hereby affirm that no personnel weie denied access lo the Audit Committee.

d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements
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All the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements have been duly complied with by the company to the extent

applicable lo the company,
a) Web link where policy (or determining 'material' subsidiaries Is disclosed

The company does nol have any subsidiary / associate / joint ventures within Ihe meaning of Companies Act, 2013

and Accounting Standards. ;'
I) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions

www.hisarspinnlnamllis.com,

g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities

At present there is no commodity price risk in ihe company.
(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as

specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

Not applicable
(i) A certificate from a practicing company secretary that none of the directors on the board of the company

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is appended hereunder

rFRTIHCATE OF NON-D1SQUAI IFICAT1ON OF DIRECTORS

{pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) Of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

(CIN: L17112HR1992PLC031621)

Regd. Office: Village & PO. Dabra,

Hisar. Haryana -125005

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Hisar

Spinning Mills Limited having CIN: L17112HR1S92PLC031621 and having registered office at Village & PO. Dabra.
Hisar Haryana - 125005 (hereinafter referred to as Ihe Company"), produced before me by the Company lor the

purpose ol issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause lO(i)
of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.oov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the

Company 4 its officers I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as slated below for the
Financial Year ending on 31st March. 2019 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other

Statutory Authority.

Sr. No.

1

2

J

1

5

3

*lame of Director

^nurag Gupta

Sapna Kansal

•Jikhil Goel

Sudesh Kumar Garg

Wilhlesh Kumar Gupta

Sandeep Suri

DIN

00192688

06892410

01741446

07692820

07692870

07693480

Date of appointment In Company

28/02/2000

20/06/2014

29/12/2016

29/12/2016

29/12/2016

29/12/2016

Ensuring the eligibility ol lor the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility ol Ihe
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. Thts
certificate Is neither an assurance as to the future viability ol the Company nor ol the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Chandigarh

Dale ; June 06, 2019

Signature: Sd/-

Name: Sanjlv Kumar Goel

Membership No.: FCS 2107

CPNo.: 1248
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(j) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatonly

required, in the relevant financial year:

There was no such instance during the financial year under review.

(k) The total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the

statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part:

M/s Romesh K. Aggarwal 4 Associates were paid a total sum of Rs. 2.00 Lakhs (excluding taxes) during the financial

year under review.

(I) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial yean Nil

b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil

c. number of complaints pending as on end ol the financial year Nil

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

No physical shares are lying as undelivered / unclaimed.

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

As provided under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. it is hereby declared thai

all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted

by the Company for the year ended 31" March 2019.

Sd/-

Place: Chandigarh (Anurag Gupta)

Dated: September 06, 2019 Managing Director

OIN-00192888
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MD AND CFO CERTIFICATION

To

The Board of Directors

Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Hisar Spinning Mills

Limited for the year ended 31* March, 2019 and to Ihe best of our knowledge and belief, we

state that;

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any matenai fact or

contain statements that might be misleading;

(if) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance

with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the

Company during Ihe year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of Ihe Company's code of

conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company

pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportabte deficiencies in the

design or operation of such internal controls. '

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i) that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Yours sincerely,

Sd/- Sd/-

(Anurag Gupta) (Sharad Goel)

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chandigarh

Date: September 06,2019
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CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE AS PER REGULATION E of SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2015.

To the Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

I have examined ihe compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Htsar Spinning Mills Limited, Hisar

(Haryana) for the year ended March 31, 2019 as stipulated in Regulation E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing

Obigations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's Management. My

examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the

compliance of the conditions of Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial

statements of the company.

In my opinion and to the best of my informalion and according to the explanations given to me, and the information

given by the management, I certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as

stipulated in the above mentioned regulations.

I slate that in respect of investor grievance received during the year ended March, 31, 2019, no investor grievances

were pending against Ihe Company, as per ihe records maintained by the Company and presented to the

Investors/Shareholders Grievance Commiltee.

I further state lhat compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted Ihe affairs of the company

sd/-

Place: Chandigarh SANJIV KUMAR GOEL

Date: June 06,2019 Practicing Company Secretary

FCS No. 2107

CP No. 1248
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ANNEXURE 'V TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant lo saction 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies {Appointment and

Remuneration Personnel) Rules. 2014

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2019

To,

The Members,

Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

9th KM Slone. Htsar Bhrwani Road,

V.P.O Dabra ( Hisar). Haryana -125005

I have conducted the secretarial audit ol the compliance ol applicable statutory provisions and Ihe adherence to good

corporate practices by Hiiar Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter called The company"). Secretarial Audit was

conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliance

and expressing my opinion Ihereon.

Based on my verification of the Hisar Spinning Mills Limited's books, papers, minutes books . forms and returns Hied

and other records maintained by the company and also Ihe information provided by the Company, Us officers,

agents and authorized representatives during Ihe conduct ol secretarial audit. I hereby report that in my opinion ,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31. 2019 complied with the

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance -

mechanism in place to (he extent, in the manner and subject lo the reporting made hereinafter

1.1 have examined the books, papers minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Hisar

Spinning Milts Limited for the financial year ended on March 31,2019 according lo the provisions of

0 The companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act. 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 end the Regulations and Bye Laws framed there under

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under lo the

extenl of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act. 1992 (SEBI Act):-

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)

Regulations. 2011;

(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition ol Insider Trading) Regulations, 1982, and

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board ol India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement

Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to Ihe Company during the Audit Period);

(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014

(Nol applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(e)The Securities and Exchange Board ol India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations. 2008

(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(f)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars lo an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Deltsling ol Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009

(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

(Nol applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

2.1 have relied on the representation made by the company and its officers for systems and mechanism put in place by
Ihe company for compliances under the applicable Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

3.1 have also examined compliance with applicable clauses ol the followings:
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0 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute ol Company Secretaries of India, effective from Jury 01,

2015.

li) The erstwhile Listing Agreement entered into by the company with Bombay Slock Exchange Limited and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)

Regulations. 2015 notified w.e.1. December 01,2015.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with Ihe provisions of the Act, Rules. Regulations.

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance ol Execulive Directors, Non - Executive

Oirectors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of Ihe Board of Directors that took place during

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given lo all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were

senl at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications

on the agenda Herns before the meeting and for meaningful participation al the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the minules of

the meetings of ihe Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report (hat there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, suits, rules, regulations and

guidelines.

Place: Chandigarh sd/-

Date: June 06,2019 Sanjiv Kumar Goel

FCS No.2107

CP No. 1248
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Annexure '2' (o Directors' Report

Information as per section 2i7{1)(e) read with companies (Disclosure of Particulars in Ihe Report of Directors) Rules

1988 and forming part of the Director's Report for ihe period ended 31st March, 2019.

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy conservation measures taken:

The Company has been giving high priority to conservation of energy by close monitoring of energy consuming

equipments. All efforts are made for installing energy saving devices wherever required.

b} Additional investment and proposals, if any, being Implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:

New equipments, whenever required, are purchased from lime to lime.

c) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent

impact on the cost of production of goods:

The measures taken to conserve energy resulted In more production. However, there was no savings in consumption

due to Increased production and increase in rales ol power.

d) Totat energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form-A of the annexure to

the rules in respect of industries specified In the schedule thereto:

PARTICULARS

A) Powar and Fuel consumption

a) Purchased Unit (KW)

Total Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Rale/Unil (Rs)

bt Throuah Diesel Generaior

UnKs(KW)

Total Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Rate/Unit (Rs/KW)

CURRENTYEAR

5230495

397.70

7.60

455607

112.53

24.65

PREVIOUS YEAR

5173255

399.30

7.72

409506

75.57

18.45

B) Consumption Per Unit Of

Production

Steam Coal

Furnace Oil

Others/Internal Generators

Cotton Yarn Production In MT

Total Units Consumed

17G1 Units

Nil

Nil

Nil

3229.804

5887102

1763 Units

Nil

Nil

Nil

3166.361

5582761

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form-B of the Annexure to the Rules.

1) Research & Development (R S.O)

a) Specific area in which R & D carried by Ihe Company: Nil

b) Benefits derived as a result of the above R 4 0: Nil

c) Future planof Action: Nil
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d) Expenditure on R & D

Capital

Revenue

Total

(Rs. In Lakhs)

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total R & 0 expenditure as a percentage of Total Turnover = NIL

2) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and Innovation:. Nil

b) Benefits derived as a result of the above eflorts e. g. product improvement, cost reduction,

product development. Import substitution etc: Nil

c) In case of imported technology (Imported during (he last 5 year reckoned from the beginning of

the linancial year) - Nil

3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

III. Activities relating to export, initiatives taken to increase export, development o! new export markets for

products and services and export plans: Nil

Value of imports calculated on C.i.F. basis:

|R». In Lakhs)

Particulars

Stores 4 Spares parts

Capital Goods

Total

For the Year ended 31.03.2019

22.98

NIL

22.98

Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Commission on sates

Total

For the Year ended 31

0.69

0.69

.03.2019

Earnings in foreign exchange:

Export of goods calculated on FO8 basts

(Rt. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Manufactured Goods

Total

For the Year ended

172.34

172.34

31 .03.2019

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: September 06, 2019

Sdl- |

(Anurag Gupta)

Managing Director

DIN-00192888

Sd/-

(Sapna Kansat)

Executive Director

DIN-06892410
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Annexure '3' to Directors' Report

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Of

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

(Pursuanl to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules. 2014)

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i)

iO

iii)

tv)

vi)

vii)

CIN

Registration Date

Name of the Company

Category / Sub-Category of the

Company

Address of the Registered office and

contact details

Whether listed company

Name, Address and Contad details of

Registrar and Transfer Agenl, if any

L17112HR1892PLC031621

10.04.1992

Hlsar Spinning Mills Limited

Public Company limited by shares

9th KM Stone. Hrsar Bhiwani Road, Village & Post Office

Dabra, Hrsar

Yes

Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Ball Nagar, New Delhi-

110015

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

ah ttiP hii<:inp« nrJivHift-; contribullna 10 % or more ol the lolal turnover of the

SI. NO.

1.

Name and Description of main products /

services

Spinning

NIC Code of the

Product/ service

1311/13111

company shall be staled:-

% to total turnover of the

company

100
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II. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: - Nil

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as

i) CateQory-wisa Shara Holding

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of

the year

Demat Physical Total %0f

Total

Shares

lercantage of Total Equity)

No. of Shares held al the end of the year

Demat Physical Total %0f

Total

Shares

%

Change

during

the

year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a)
Individ ual/HUF

b) Central Govt

c) Stale Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / Fl

f)Any Other....

Sub-total (A)

0):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -

Individuals

b) Other -

Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

e)Any Other....

Sub-total (A)

<2)>

Total

shareholding of

Promoter (A) ■

<A)(1WA)(2)

1882170

-

-

-

-

1882170

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1882170

-

-

--

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1882170

-

-

■-

-

1882170

-

—

-

-

-

-

-

1882170

50.39

-

-

-

-

50.39

-

—

-

-

-

-

-

50.39

1885870

-

-

-

--

1*85870

-

—

—

-

—

1885870

-

-

-

-

-

—

-

—

—

-

-

-

—

1885S70

■-

--

1885870

--

—

-

-

-

—

1885870

50.46

-

-

--

■-

50.49

--

-

--

-

50.49

0.10

-

-

-

-

-

0.10

-

-

-

-

0.10

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

t>) Banks / Fl

c) Central Govt

d) Stale Govt(s)

e) Venture

Capital Funds

0 Insurance

Companies

-

-

-

-

--

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

—

—

-

-

—

—

-

-

-

-

—

—

-

• - ,

-

•-

—

-

-

-

-

—

■-

-

-

-

—
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9) HI*

h) Foreign
Venture Capital

Funds

1) Others

(specify)

Sub-total

(B)<1)>

-

-

—

-

—

-

-

-

—

—

—

•

—

—

—

—

—

— —

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

I) Indian

if) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual

shareholders

holding nominal

share capital

upto Rs. 1 Lakh

il) Individual

shareholders

holding

nominal share

capital in

excess of Rs 1

Lakh

c) Others

(specify)

Sub-total

(B)(2»

Tolal Public

Shareholding

(B)-(B)(1)+

(B)(2)

C. Shares held

by Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total

(A*B+C)

■■

-■

-

236500

49100

24300

309900

309900

**

2192070

-

-

-

1517B30

25100

1542930

1542930

—

1642930

-

--

--

1754330

40100

49400

1852830

1(52830

3735000

-

-

-

48.97

1.31

1.32

49.61

49.61

100

-

-

-

264900

49100

18900

332900

332900

221S770

-

-

-

1515130

1100

1516230

1516230

1516230

-

-

-

1780030

49100

20000

1549130

1849130

3735000

-

-

-

47.66

1.31

0.54

49.51

49.51

100

-

--

-

0.S9

-0.7B

—

(ii)Shareholding of Promoters

SI No. Shareholder's

Name

Shareholdino

the year

No. of

Shares

at the beginning of

% or tola I

Shares of

the

company

%of

Shares

Pledge

til

encum

bered

to total

shares

Share holding at the end of the

year

No. of

Shares

% oltotal

Shares of

the

company

%ol

Shares

Pledged /

encumber

ed to total

shares

% change

in share

holding

during the

year
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1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

g.

10.

ii.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Megha Goel

Anju Gupla

Shilpa Garg

Ritesh Goel

Bindu Goel

Shruti Goel

Manju Goel

Naveen Kansal

Tanjn Goel

Anuj Gupta

Anurag Gupla

Anjn Goel

Gopal Anurag

(HUF)

Gopal Anuj (HUF)

G S Goel

Sharat G Goel

Hari Kishan Goei

Davinder Kumar

Goel

Ashwani Kumar

Shashi Bhushan

Gupta

Sunita Goel

Sharda Kansal

Sapna Kansal

Usha Rani Gupta

Gulab Singh Goel

Gopal Krishan

Gupta

Sharad Goel

Anktt Goel

Nikhil Goel

Mohan Lai Kansal

Total

7200

7700

8700

9300

10000

11000

15100

21600

19100

181683

184250

25000

25000

25000

27940

27540

40400

45000

52950

54650

56900

60000

63100

75000

97600

115000

145000

146190

160400

163867

1882170

0.19

0.21

0.23

0.25

0.27

0.29

0.40

0.58

0.51

4.86

4.93

0.67

0.67

0.67

0.75

0.74

1.08

1.20

1.42

1.46

1.52

1.61

1.69

2.01

2.61

3.08

3.88

3.91

4.29

4.39

50.39

-

■

-

■

•

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

■

-

-

-

-

■

-

-

-

-

-

-

■

7200

7700

8700

9300

10000

11000

15100

22200

19100

181683

184250

25000

25000

25000

27940

27540

40400

45000

52950

54650

56900

60000

63100

75000

97600

115000

148100

146190

160400

163867

1885670

0.19

0.21

0.23

0.25

0.27

0.29

0.40

0.59

0.51

4.86

4.93

0.67

0.67

0.67

0.75

0.74

1.08

1.20

1.42.

1.46

1.52

1.61

1.69

2.01

2.61

3.08

3.97

3.91

4.29

4.39

50.49

-

-

-

■

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

■

■

-

■

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

•

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.01

-

•

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

■

-

-

-

0.09

-

-

-

0.10
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SI.

No

1.

2.

;hanqe In Promoters' Shareholding ( please ;

Naveeri Kansal

At the beginning of the year

Increase during the year

Al the End of the year

Sharad Goel

At the beginning ol the year

Increase during the year

At the End Of the year

specify, if there is no change):

Shareholding at the

beginning ollhe year

No. ol

shares

21600

600

145000

3100

% of total

shares of the

company

0.58

0.01

3.88

0.08

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

NO. Of

shares

21600

22200

22200

145000

148100

148100

% ol total shares

of the company .

0.58

0.59

0.59

3.88

3.97

3.97

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten

ADRs):

SI.

No.

1

2

3

4

5

8

7

8

9

10

Top 10 Shareholders

Shashi Rani 4 Shyam Sunder

Gupta

Sushila Goel

Amulya Leasing & Finance Ltd

Mahendra Girdharilal

Wadhwani

Pratik Rajendra Gandhi.

Satya Prakash Mittai (HUF)

Raman Mehra

Bajrang Lai Goel

Shelly Goel S Goel

Ram Phal

Shareholders (other than

Shareholding al the

beginning of the year

No. of shares

49100

20000

16700

0

13400

10500

7300

6200

6000

5300

% of total

shares ol

the

company

1.31

0.54

0.45

0

0.35

0.28

0.20

0.17

0.16

0.14

Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of

shares

49100

20000

16700

16200

13500

11900

7300

6200

6000

5300

% of total

shares of

the

company

1.31

0.54

0.45

0.43

0.36

0.32

0.20

0.17

0.16

0.14

% change in

share holding

during the .

year

-

-

-

0.43

0.01

0.04

•

-

-

■

and
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SI.

No.

1.

2.

3.

4.

For Each of the Directors and

KMP

Name ol the Director/ KMP

ANURAG GUPTA

SAPNA KANSAL

SHARAD GOEL

NAVEEN KANSAL

Shareholding at the beginning o( the

year

No. ol shares

184250

63100

145000

21600

% of lolat shares of

the company

4.93

1.69

3.68

0.42

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of

shares

184250

63100

148100

22200

% of total shares

of the company

4.93

1.69

3.97

0.59

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rs, in Lakhs)

Indebtedness at the

i) PrincipalAmount

ii) Interesldue but

not paid

ill) Interest accrued

but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Secured Loans

excluding deposits

Unsecured

Loans

Deposits

beginning of the financial year

330.16

-

1.88

332.04

29.04

-

-

29.04

-

•

-

Total

Indebtedness

359.20

-

1.88

361.08

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

(a) Addition

(b) Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the

i) PrincipalAmount

II) Interest due but

not paid

iii) Interest accrued

but not due

Total (i+li+iii)

155.51

111.21

44.30

-

29.04

-29.04

-

-

-

end of the financial year

374.71

1.63

376.34

-

- ■

-

-

155.51

140.25

15.26

374.71

1.63

376.34
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager-

SI.

no.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Particulars of

Remuneration

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per

provisions contained in

section 17(1) of the

Income-tax Ad, 1961

(b) Value o( perquisites

u/s 17(2) Income-lax

Act, 1961

(c) Profits In lieu ol

salary under section

17(3) Income-tax Act.

1961

Slock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % ol profit

- others, specify...

Others, please specify

(Provident fund)

Total (A)

Celling as per (he Act

(R:

Name of MDJWTD/ Manager

Mr. Anurag Gupla

(Managing Director)

15.00

-

-

-

-

-

—

15.00

Sapna Kansal (Whole Time Director)

15.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

—

15.00

. In lakhs)

Total Amount

—

30.00

-

-

-

-

-

30.00

As per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration to other directors:

SI.

no.

Particulars □(

Remuneration

1. Independent

Directors

Fee for attending board

/ committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Tolal(1)

2. Other Non-Executive

Directors

Fee (or attending board

/ committee meetings

Commission

Name of Directors

Mrthlesh Kumar Gupta

0.63

■■

-

0.63

-

-

-

Sudesh Kumar

Garg

0.63

-

-

0.63

—

—

-

Sandeep Suri

0.52

-

0.52

*•

-*

-

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Total Amount

1.78

-

-

1.78

-
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Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial

Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per

the Act

-

-

0.63

-

-

-

0.63

-

Within Ihe limits prescribed under the Ad.

-

-

0.52

-

-

-

1.78

" -

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

(Rs: In Lakhs)

SI.

no.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Particulars of Remuneration

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained

in section 17(1) olthe Income-tax Ad,

1961

(b) Value ol perquisites u/s 17(2)

Income-tax Act 1961

(c) Profits in lieu ol salary under

section 17{3) Income-lax

Act. 1961

Slock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % ol

profit

- others, specify...

Others, please

specify (Provident fund)

Total

Key Managerial Personnel .

'NIktta Singla.

Company

Secretary

0.33

■•

■-

-

-

0.33

"Verinder

Kamal

Sood

Company

Secretary

0.85

-

-

-

-

0.85

'"Ms.

Manmeet

Kaur

Sihola

0.25

-

- '

-

-

0.25

Sharad

Goel.

Chief

Financial

Officer

12.00

12.00

Naveen Kansal.

Chief Executive

Officer

15.00

-

-

-

15.00

Total

28.43

-

-

-

-

2S.43

"Mrs. Nikita Singla (Appointed w.e.f. Ot .02.2019)

"Mr. Verinder Kamal Sood, Company Secretary from 12.06.2018 to 31.01.2019

"'Ms. Hanmeet Kaur Sihota Company Secretary from 01.09.2017 to 11.06.2018

VII. PENALTIES I PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: - NIL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Global Economic Overview

The year 2018 experienced a decline in the global economy, with growth rate (ailing to 3.6 per cent, which is a
decrease from the 2017 growth rate i.e. 3.8 per cent. The decline was attributed to a fiscally Induced Qrawth

acceleration in the United Slates of America which offset a slower expansion in a lew large economies, including
Argentina. Canada. China, and Turkey. In many developed countries, growth rates had risen close to their potential,

while unemployment rates had dropped. Among the developing economies, the Easl and South Asia regions remained

on a relatively strong growth trajeclory. amid robust domestic demand condilions.

Growth in global Induslrial production and merchandise trade volumes had been lapering since early 2018. parlicularty
in the trade-intensive capital and intermediate goods sectors. In several countries, leading indicators point to some

softening in economic momentum, amid escalating trade disputes, risks of financial stress and volatility, and an
undercurrent of geopolitical tensions. AI the same time, a few developed economies were facing capacity constraints.

which may have weighed on growth In the short term.

Despite an improvement in growth prospects at the global level, several large developing countries saw a decline in per

capita income in 2018. White a modest recovery was projected in 2019, per capita incomes were still likely to remain

stagnant or grow only marginally in Central. Southern and Wesl Africa, Western Asia, and Latin America and the

Caribbean.

The global economy was facing a confluence of risks, which could severely disrupt economic activity and inflict
significant damage on long term development prospects. These risks included an escalation of trade disputes, an

abrupt lightening of global financial conditions, and intensifying climate risks.

In 2018. the United States' decisions to increase import tariffs had sparked retaliations and counter-retalia lions. A

prolonged episode ol heightened trade tensions and a spiral of additional tariffs posed a significant risk to the global

growth outlook. Global economic adivtty was Impacted through several channels, including slowdown in investment,

higher consumer prices and a decline in business confidence.

A period ol subdued trade growth would also weigh on productivity growth in the medium terni and long term growth

prospects. Trade supports productivity growth via economies of scale, access to inputs, and the acquisition of
knowledge and technology. These channels are strongly intertwined with investment decisions, productivity gains,

economic growth and even sustainable development.

Indian Economic Overview

India was and will be In a period of unprecedented opportunity, challenge and ambition in Us development. It is already

the world's third largest economy in purchasing parity terms. Long term GDP growth has become more stable and
resilient in 2018. Over the next few years. India is expected to grow at well over 7 % per year, with progress being
supported by dynamic relorms in the macroeconomic. fiscal, tax and business environments.

The GDP was 7.1 which is expected to reach 7.5% by the end of the year 2019. The slow growth caused by GST and

demonetisation ended this year. There was a huge increase in trade within Ihe country, making India a much more

attractive place to invest.

Amid the 3.5% inflation experienced in the year 2018. GDP at current prices reached 2.97 thousand US dollars and
briefly took India to become the 6th largest economy in the work). France in Ihe later part of ihe year regained its 6th
spot, pushing India back lo 7lh. However, going by the growth forecasts. India is expected to overtake France again
with a year owing to its phenomenal Industrial growth. With a labour force of 521.9 million. India is moving at an

induslrial growth rate of 5.5% since 2017.

However, there are a few speed bumps in this growth story. The population below poverty line is still 21.9% and
unemptaymem rate Is at the highest in over 4 decades ai 6.1 %. In order to grow India will have to make more use ol

Ihe young population. The country's youth noi only has a low dependency ratio and healthy savings but it is also
increasing integration into Ihe globai economy. Thus, the long term challenges remain significant, including inefficienl
power generation and distribution system, ineffective enforcement ol intellectual property rights, decades-long civil
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litigation dockets, inadequate transport and agricultural infrastructure, limited non-agricultural employment

opportunities, high spending and poorly targeted subsidies, inadequate availability of quality bask: higher education and

accommodation ruraMo-urban migration.

In the year 2018-19. merchandise exports increased significantly by 8.85% to reach a value of USS 298.47 billion In

December 2018. Foreifjn Direct Investment reached USS 409.15 bn. with major contributions coming in from services,

computer software and hardware, telecommunications, construction, trading and automobiles.

Textile and Apparel Industry Overview

Global Textile Industry

Consumption

Global apparel consumption is projected to be approximately USS 1.9 triDion in 2018. The global apparel demand is

expected to grow at a CAGR of 5% from the current USS 1.9 trillion to reach US $2.6 trillion by the year 2025. Among

(Me top eight markets of apparel, India and China are expected to grow at steady CAGR of 12% and 10%, respectively

as compared to world total ol 5%. Higher economic growth and rise in per capita income will lead to the growth in the

apparel market in these developing countries.

Trade

In 2018, (jlobal textile and apparel trade was estimated at USS 790 billion and has grown at a CAGR of 4.3% since

1995. Apparel is the largest category with a share of 58%. followed by fabric with a share of 19%. The global textile and

apparel trade is expected to grow at a rale of about 4% from the present worth of USS 790 billion to USS 1,200 billion

by 2030. Growth in global trade indicates an attractive opportunity for countries with large manufacturing capacities and

competitive manufacturing. India can be one of the gainers in the changing trade landscape. There was a 4% decline in

trade in 2016 compared to 2015 owing to stifled global economic scenario. However, the trade is showing a positive

growth alter the downfall in 2016.

Share of Major Suppliers

China is (he largest exporter with 35% share in global textile £ apparel exports in 2018, followed by India with 5%

share. Other major exporters include Bangladesh, Germany. Italy and Vietnam. Over the years, manufacturing has

shifted towards low cost countries, with the share of US and Europe decreasing continuously and Asian countries

growing, led by China. Bangladesh, India and Vietnam.

Indian Textile and Apparel Industry

Textile and apparel sector is one of the leading segments ot the Indian economy and one of the largest sources of

foreign exchange earnings. It accounts for about 5% of the gross domestic product (GDP), and around 13% of the total

exports earnings. The sector also provides direct employment to 45 million people.

India's key strengths in this sector lies in availability ol all types of natural end manmade fibres, large pool ol

manpower across the levels of hierarchy, presence of complete value chain and a large and growing domestic market.

Several state governments like Gujarat. Jharkhand, Maharashtra, etc. are also odering sector specific Incentives like

capital subsidy, interest subsidy, wage subsidy, etc. These support initiatives allow Indian exporters to overcome a large

part ol duly disadvantage they lace in markets ol EU and US where some of the competing nations get a zero duly

access. These factors make India a preferred destination for textile investments as compared to its competing nations

like Bangladesh. Vietnam, and Sri Lanka, etc. This section further details the current status ol Indian textile and apparel

industry, key trends, challenges and the way ahead for the sector

Indian textile and apparel sector has the double advantage of being export competitive as weU as having large

domestic consumption which is growing. It is currently estimated at USS 137 billion The domestic consumption ol textile

and apparel constitutes approximately 73% of the total market size while exports constitute the rest 27%.
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Domestic Market Overview

The current domestic (extile and apparel markei is esiimated at USS 100 billion, with apparel havingabout 74% share,

wari growth of disposable income, favourable demographics and changing lifestyle, consumption of products and

services is expected to grow continuously In the foreseeable future, including textiles and apparel.

Indian consumers' affinity towards brands and organized retailing is increasing, which is helping the consumption
growih of all products, including textile & apparel. Organized retailing In India currently stands at only 10% of the overall

retail market of USS 790 billion Within this, apparel has a share of approximately 9%. With growing disposable income,
favourable demographics, changing lifestyles and a high potential for penetrating non-urban metro markets; the share

of organized markets in India is expected to reach 25% by 2030. India is atso witnessing growth of Its aspiring middle
class who tend to seek value and consume premium products. This shift In number of households within different

income brackets will improve ihe consumption of products and services, which will definitely include textile and apparel

as a lifestyle choice to enhance fashion. The vast population base and growing economy has caused global retailers

and brands to enter the Indian markei. either on their own or through local partners.

Indian Exports Overview

in terms of global ranking, India Is ranked 3rd in textile export with 6% share and 6lh in apparel export with 4% share.

Overall, India holds second position with 5% share of global textile and apparel exports. India's textile 4 apparel exports

were USS 37 billion In 2017-18 and have grown al 6% CAGR since 2005-06. Availability of raw material, skilled

manpower and favourable central & state government schemes would further help Indian exporters increase their

market share and global compelitiveness. India has large manufacturing capacities across Ihe complete manufacturing

value chain viz. natural and manmade fibre, spinning, weaving, knitting, processing, garmenting, made-ups and

technical textiles.

Installed Capacities in Indian Textle Sector (2016-17)

Description

Spindles

Rotor

Looms (Including Power Looms)

Man Made Fibre

Man Made Filament

Looms (Includina oower looms)

Sewing machines

Capacities

52 Mn.

0.9 Mn.

2.Q Mn.

1.8 Bn. kq.

2.2 Bn. kq.

2.6 million

5 million

Source: Office of Textile Commissioner. Government of India and Wazir Estimates

India's Global Position

Global textile and apparel trade grew at a rate of 4% over the last decade to reach a value of USS 790 billion in 2018.

During the same period. India's export of textile and apparel grew al a comparatively higher rate of 6% to reach a value

of USS 37 billion In 2018. India's textile and apparel exports are expected to grow al a CAGR of 10% to reach USS 120

billion in 2030.

India currently enjoys the position of being the

second largest exporter of textile products to the world, next to China. Availability of raw material; skilled manpower and
favourable central and state government schemes would further help Indian exporters increase their markei share and

global competitiveness.

Spinning Industry Overview

The global yam markei is estimated to be around USS 40 billion in 2017 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 1.05%
to reach US$42 billion by the year 2022. In 2018 with an installed capacity of about S3 million spindles, India is one of

the largest producer and exporter of cotton yarn in the world with a production of 5,122 million hgs.

China is the largest importer of cotton yam (25% share) from India, lollowed by Bangladesh and Pakistan with 20% and

7% share, respectively. The lop five importers form 62% of India's total cotton yarn exports.
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The high cotton yam exports out of India can be attributed to the local availability of abundant raw material and modem
infrastructure in the spinning section of the value chain. Indian spinners over the last few decades have invested
extensively in bringing in the latest spinning technologies and infrastructure to India.

Some of the advantages of the India spinning industry are as follows:

• Large scale installed capacity

• Good raw material availability - India is largest producer of cotton

• Modem set ups with high quality and efficiency levels

• Sustainable value chain demand in domestic maritet

■ Polenlial increase in export markets like Bangladesh. Pakistan etc.

Fabric Industry Overview

Fabric being the primary raw material of the apparel industry, is an indispensable part of the supply chain. The global
trade of fabrics registered a value ol USS 146 billion in 2017. Woven fabrics constituted the majority share ol 76% with
a value of USS 111 billion. The remaining value of USS 35 billion was for the trade of knitted fabric. Over the last five
years the trade of woven fabric has shown de-growth at a CAGR of 1.5%. while the trade of knitted fabric has been
growing positively at a CAGR of 1.5%. India's exports of fabrics Stood al USS 4.6 billion in 2017. which was dominated
by woven fabrics with a share of over 99%. The export of knitted fabrics was just USS 343 million when compared to
the USS 4 3 billion woven fabric exports. The country's export of knitted fabric hBS been growing at a CAGR of 9.5%
over Ihe last five years However, woven fabrics have shown a decline at a CAGR ol 1.6% in the same time period.ln
2017 the fabric production in India stood at 66,515 million sq. m, which has grown at 1% CAGR in the past five years.
Woven fabric had the major share of 73%, while the rest being knitted fabric. However, the production of woven fabric
has grown at a CAGR of 1% while knitted fabric production has increased at 4% CAGR in the last half a decade.

THE COMPANY

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
A strong internal control is pervasive in the Company. The Company has a well established framework of internal
control in all areas of Us operations, Including suitable monitoring procedures, competent and qualified personnel. The
Internal Audit department also assesses the opportunities lor improvement in business processes, systems and
controls provides recommendations, designed to add value to the Company. In addition lo statutory audit, the financial
controls of the Company at various locations are reviewed by the Internal Auditors, who report their findings lo the Audit
Committae of the Board. The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
system and suggests furthering strengthening the same, if so required. The CommNlee meets to review the progress of
the internal audit initiatives, significant audit observations, planning and implementation of follow up action required.
The Company conducts its business with integrity and high standard ol ethical behavior and in compliance with Ihe
applicable laws and regulations that govern its business.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACES

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention ol
Sexual Harassment at Workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention Prohibition and Redressal) Act. 2013. The Management of the Company has also constituted an Internal
Complaints Committee at its workplaces to consider and redress the complaints of Sexual Harassment. Dunng the year
under review, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment.

RISKS 8. CONCERNS „ , ,

Business risks exist for every Company having national and International exposure. Your Company also faces some
such risks the key ones are unfavourable raw material price, financial 8. liquidity & unexpected changes in regulatory

framework'. To ensure long-term success, it is therefore essential that risks be effectively identified, analyzed and then

mitigated by means of appropriate control measures.

We have a comprehensive risk management system/policy in place, which enables us to assess, mitigate and to
monitor the different risks exposed to the industry in which the Company operates and to take the appropriate action.

where ever required.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES

The Company has health and workplace salety programs in place and has established policies and procedures aimed
at ensuring compliance with applicable laws/legislative requirements. The Company believes thai the health and safety

of the workers and the persons residing in the vicinity of its plants is fundamental to the business. Commitment to the

identification and elimination or control o( the workplace hazards lor protection of aD is utmost importance.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The permanent employee strength of Company as on 31" March 2019 was Eighty Seven. The Company recognizes

the importance and contribution of Us human resources lor its growth and development and is committed to the

development of its people. The Company has been adopting methods and practices for Human Resources

development. With utmost respect to human values, the Company continues to develop its human resources, through

appropriate trainings, workshops, mot(vation/leadership techniques and employee welfare activities al regular intervals.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Particulars

Debtors Turnover (times)

Inventory Turnover (times)

Interest Coverage Ratio (times)

Current Ralb

Debt Equity Ratio

Operating Profit Margin (%)

Net Prom Margin {%)

Return on Net Worth (%)

FY 2017-18

16.86

4.95

4.02

2.60%

0.96

8.60%

4.88%

19.12%

FY 2013-19

14.20

4.19

7.13

2.62%

0.73

12.14%

7.38%

24.14%

YoY Change

•2.66

-0.76

3.11

0.02%

0.23

41.16%

51.23%

26.26%

Reuont for significant chanfei:

Improvement in operating profit margin, net profit margin and return on net worth due to growth in yam sale.

Disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter

group which hold (s) 10% or more shareholding In the listed entity, In the format prescribed in the relevant

accounting standards for annual results.: NA

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Slalements in the Board's Report and the Managemenl Discussion & Analysis describing the Company's objectives,

expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.

Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors lhat could influence the

Company's operations Include global and domestic demand and supply conditions aRecting selling prices of finished

goods. Input availability and yam prices In the domestic and overseas markets, changes in government regulations, tax

laws and economic developments.

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Chandigarh

Dated: September 06, 2019

Sd/-

(Anurag Gupta)

Managing Director

DIN-00192SS8

Sd/-

(Sapna Kansal)

Executive Director

DIN-06892410
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited ("the Company"), which comprise Ihe
Balance Sheet as at 31st March. 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehenswe
Income) and the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act*) in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepled in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 201S. and its profit and total comprehensive income.

changes in equity and its cash flows lor the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit or
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are Independent ol the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance In our audit of the

financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to

communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Compan/s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other informalion comprises the
information included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon. The Company's Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date ol

this auditor's report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is matenally

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.
When we read the Compan/s Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material mistatemenl therein, we are

required to communicate the matter to management and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and

regulations. ,
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Responsibilities of Management forth* Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors b responsible for the matters staled in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to

the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and (air view of the financial position, financial

performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with

the accounting principles generally accepted In India, including the accounting) Standards specified under section

133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance wilh

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding ihe assets of the Company and (or preventing and detecting frauds and

other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to Ihe preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true,and fair view and are free

from malarial misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. Ihe Board of Directors Is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of ihe Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatemenl. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misslatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if. Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also :

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial slatements. whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatemenl resulting from fraud is higher than lor one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepreseniaiions. or the override of internal control.

II. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible for expressing

our opinion on whether the Company has adequate Internal financial controls wilh reference to financial

sialaments in place and the operating effectiveness ol such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness ot accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness ot management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, wheiher a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on Ihe Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our,auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based

on ihe audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ol the financial statements, including Ihe

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent Ihe underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves lair presentation.
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We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and tJmlnflI or«M> audit
and significant audit findings, induding any significant deficiendes in internal control .hat we .dentrfy dunng our

audit.

We also provide management wHh a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and lo communicale wilh them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought lo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From me mailers communtealed wilh management we determine those matte* tha. were ohjosl^
the audit of .he financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key aud«^We descnbe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation predudes pubfac disclosure about .he matter or when
in extremely rare drcumstances. we determine that a matter should not be commuted,n °« »»"»"""
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outwegh .he pub.* merest benefits of

such communicalion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by .he Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2016 (the Order") issued by the Central
' Government of India in terms of sub-seclion (11) of section 143 of .he Act. we g.ve to Annexure A a

statement on the matters specified in .he paragraphs 3 and 4 ot the Order, to the extern applicable.

2. As required by Seclion 143(3) of .he Act. we report thai:

(a) We have sought and obtained all Ihe information and explanations which lo me best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet. Ihe Statement of Prom and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income.
Statement of Changes in Equity and .he Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are n

agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with ihe Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Seclion 133 ol Ihe Ad read wilh Rule 7 of Ihe Companies (Accounls) Rules. 2014.

(el On Ihe basis of the written representations received from the direclors as on 31st March. 2019 and
taken on record by Ihe Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31s. March. 2019

from being appointed as a director in terms of Seclion 164(2) of the Act.

(0 With respect to Ihe adequacy ot the internal finandal controls wiih reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer lo our separale report in "Annexure

B".
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(g) With respecl to the other matters to be included in !he Auditor's Report 6n accordance with Rule 11 of
(he Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 10 the best of our information and
according lo the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigalions on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note 36 lo the financial statements.

ii, The Company did nol have any long-term contracls including derivative contraas for which Ihere
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Ihe Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL S ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accounlants

(Firm's Registration No. 000711N)

(RUCHIRSINGLA)

Place of Signature: Chandigarh Partner

Date : 30.05.2019 Membership No. 519347
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our

report to the Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited of even date)

(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantltailve details and

situs I Ion of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program (or the physical verification of fixed assets ai periodic intervals. In our

opinion, the period of verification Is reasonable having regard lo the size of the Company and the nature

of its fixed assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the title deeds of Immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals. The

discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

(lli) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms. Limited Liability

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus.

paragraph 3(ifi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are nol applicable.

(iv)b According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of

the Company, the Company has not advanced any loans or made any investments or given any guarantees

or provided any security during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is nol applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at

31st March. 2019 and therefore, ihe provisions of the paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to ihe

Company.

(vf) The Central Government has not specified ihe maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act.

for any of the products of Ihe Company.

(vii) (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undlspuied statutory dues, including provident

fund, employees' slate insurance. Income-tax, sales-tax, service lax, goods and service tax. duty of

customs, duly of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable to the

Company, with the appropriate authorities, though there has been slight delay in few cases. According

lo the informa I ion and explanations given lo us, no undisputed amounts outstanding as payable in

respect of such statutory dues were in arrears as at 3lsl March, 2019 for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of income tax or service tax or goods and service tax or duly of customs or duly of

excise which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. According to the records of the

Company, the outstanding dues of sales tax or value added lax on account of dispute are given below:

Nature of the

Statute

Maryana Value

Added Tax Ad.

2003

V

Cenlral Sales Tax

Act. 1850

Nature of

the Dues

Value

added tax

Central

sales tax

Amount (7)

(Gross)

397773/-

87B75/-

Amount

Paid/

adjusted

under

Protest <J)

397773/-

87675/-

Period to

which the

amount

relates

Assessment

Year 2012-

2013

Assessment

Year 2013-

2014

Forum where dispute is

pending

Before the Joint Excise and

Taxation Commissioner

(Appeals). Haryana

Before the Joint Excise and

Taxation Commissioner

(Appeals). Haryana
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(viii) The Company has nol defaulled in repayment ol loans or borrowing to a.financial institution or bank. The
Company does not have any loans or borrowing trom Governmeni during the year. The Company also does

nol have any outstanding debentures during ihe year.

fix) According to Ihe Information and explanation given lo us. Ihe Company has raised money byway of Iresh
term loans during the year and these lerm loans were applied for ihe purposes tor which they were rased.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public otter (including debt

instruments) during the year under consideration.

(x) To the besl ol our Knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us. no fraud by the
Company or on ihe Company by Us olficers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to Ihe information and explanation given lo us. the Company has paid/ provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with ihe requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section

187 read with Schedule Vlo the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according lo the information and explanations given lo us. Ihe Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(»i) of Ihe Order is nol applicable.

(xiii) According lo the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records ol
the Company transactions wilh the related parties are in compliance wilh Sections 177 and 1B8 ol the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During Ihe year the Company has not made any preferential allolment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under paragraph 3{xiv) of ihe Order is nol

applicable to the Company.

(XV) According lo the information and explanalions given to us and based on our examination of Ihe records of
Ihe Company. Ihe Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected to its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) ol the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is nol required to be registered under Section 45-IA ol the Reserve Bank of India Ad. 1934.

tor ROMESH K. AGGARWAL 4 ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 000711N)

Place of Signature: Chandigarh

Dale : 30.05.2019

(RUCHIR SINGLA)

Membership No. 519347
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(0 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to
the Members of Htsar Spinning Mills Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial conlrols wilh reference to financial statements of Hisar Spinning Mills

Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction wilh our audit of the financial stalements of the
Company for the year ended on that dale.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference lo financial statements

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control staled in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI").
These responsibilities Include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls

with reference to financial statements that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct

of its business, including adherence lo company's policies, ihe safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under Ihe Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on ihe Company's inlemat financial controls with reference to financial

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI

and prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable lo an audit of internal

financial conlrols with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we

comply wilh ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

adequate internal financial controls wfth reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures lo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls with reference to financial statements and their operatino effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements Included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls

wilh reference to financial statements, assessing ihe risk thai a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating ihe design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditors judgment, including ihe assessment ol the risks ol material misslatemeni of the

financial statements, whether due lo fraud or error.

We believe thai the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on ihe Company's internal financial conlrols system with reference lo financial statements.
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1

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference lo financial statements is a process designed lo provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and Ihe preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
conirol with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dsposrt.ons of
Ihe assets of Ihe company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary lo
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted account.ng pnnciples. and tho
receipts and expendilures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorises ol management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance reoarding prevenuon or timely detection ol

unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition ol Ihe company's assets thai could have a mater.al effect on Ihe ^

financial statements. r

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial stalements |

Because of the inherent limitations ol inlemal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the {
possibility of collusion or improper managemenl override of conlrols. material misstatemenls due to error or fraud j
mav occur and not be detected. Also, projections ol any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements to future periods are subject lo the risk that the inlemal financial control with reference to \
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comphance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. v

Opinion

In our opinion Ihe Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial conlrols system with
reference to financial stalements and such internal financial controls wilh reference lo financial statements were
operatino effectively as ot 31st March. 2019, based on the internal control wilh reference to financial stalements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated m the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 000711N)

(RUCH1R SINGLA)

Race of Signature: Chandigarh „

Date: 30.05.2019 . Membersh.p No.
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Balance Sheet •■ a( 31*1 March 201*

r In Lakhs
Particular* Note No. A* at 31.D3.ZOtB At, at 31.03.201 a

ASSETS

Non-current auili

(a) Property. Plant and Equipment

(b) Capital work-In-progress

(c) Financial Assets

(1) Olher financial assets

(fl) Delerced tax assets (not)

(e) Olher non-current assets

Currant assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(1) Trade receivables

(H) Cash and cash equivalents

(li) Bank balances other than (li) above

(Iv) Other financial assets

(c) Current Tax Assets (Nei)

(d) Other currenl assets

(e) Assets classified as held for sale

Tolal Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity Share capital

(b) Olher Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-currant liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(li) Other financial liabilities

(b> Other non-current HabURie*

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(I) Borrowings

(II) Trade payable!

-Total outstanding dues ol micro enterprises

and small enterprises

-Total outstanding dues creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises

(IB) Other financial nabUUies

- <t>) Olher current liabilities

(e) Provisions

Tolal Equity and Liabilities

Significant Accountinj) Policies 2

The accompanying Notes are an Integral part ol the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report on even dale attached

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regtsiralion No. 00071 IN

302.09

24.43

50,20

120.10

3.20

713.72

509.10

44o.ee

50.40

126.39

3.40

929.19

032.22

0

10

11

12

13

14

15

10

17

236.50

129.49

2.53

5.04

07.00

1.09

373.50

505.84

1150.20

1767.38

939.34

160.61

00.21

52.07

5.48

1.10

30.01

_

373.50

304.29

000,83

1513.0S

737.79

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

156.25

100,22

140.39

120.62

2.23

65.50

153.43

44.77

3.04

407.86

410.19

1787.3«

221.00

03.47

150.18

29.02

1.71

30,20

195.16

51.20

0.40

400.71

314.55

1513.08

For and on behalf of the Board ot Directors of

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 30.0S.201B

(RUCHIR SINGLA)

Partner

Membership No. 51S347

(ANURAG GUPTA)

Managing Director

DIN-00192008

(SHARAD GOEL}

Chief Financial OSficer

(NIKHIL GOEL}

Director

DIN-01741448

(NIK1TA SINGLA)

Company Secretary
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REVENUE

Revenue From Operations

Other Income

Total Income

HISAR SPINNING

Statement of Profit

Particulars

MM

nnd

ISI

Loss

IMITED

for the year ended 31st

Note No.

March 2019

For the

ended 31.

year

03.2019

For

ended

the

31.

r In Lakhs

year

03.2018

28

27

3047.81

25.68

3073.69

2873.59

15.78

2869.35

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Changes In Inventories ot finished goods

ami work-In-progress

Employee benefits expense

Finance cosls

Depredation expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before tax

l His- Tan nxnanse:

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

90.94

0.29
(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

Profit for the year

father Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reetassifted lo

profit or loss

Remeasurement ol the defined benefit

(ii) Income lax relating to Items thai will

not be reclassilted to profit or toss

Total Other Comprehensive Income for

the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the

Earnings per equity share: 35

(Nominal value of equity share ■ ? 10/-)

Basic (7}

Diluted (T)

Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report on even dale attached

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL S ASSOCIATES

Charierod Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 00071 IN

1760.66

-86.56

159.3B

51.92

124.65

745.63

2755.6S

318.01

91.23

226.78"

0.37

-0.10

0.27

227.05

0.07

e.07

82.03

-37.59

1698.04

-38.02

141.44

61.45

187.77

653.06

2703.7B

185.59

44.49

141.10

0.26

-0.07

0.19

141.29

3.78

3.7B

For and on behalf ol the Board of Directors of

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 30.0S.2019

(RUCHIR SINGLA)

Partner

Membership No. 519347

(ANURAG GUPTA)

Managing Director

DIN-00192888

(SHARAD GOEL)

Chief Financial Officer

(NIKHIL GOEL)

Director

D1N-01741446

(NIKITA SINGLA)

Company Secretary
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2019

Particulars "

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

-_. Depreciation expense

^ Deferred Government gram relating to EPCG Scheme

Deferred Government grant relating to property, planl and equipment

■> Fair value loss/ (-) gain on financial instruments at FVTPL

-»* Loss/ (-) gain on foreign currency transactions and translation

Deterred processing fees

Sundry debit balances written off

Interest income

Finance costs

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movement In working capital:

Decrease/ (-) Increase in inventories

Decrease/ (-) Increase In trade receivables

Decrease/ (-) increase in other financial assets

Decrease/ {-) increase in other assets

Increase/ (-) decrease in trade payables

Increase/ (-) decrease in other financial liabilities

Increase/ (■) decrease in other liabilities

Increase/ (-) decrease In provisions

Cash generated from operations

Less: Income Tax Paid (nel ol refunds)

Net cash from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities

(•) Purchase of properly, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-
- progress)

(•) Increase/ decrease in fixed deposits with banks more than twelve

months maturity (pledged with banks towards margin against bank

, guarantees)

y (-) Increase/ decrease In deposits with more than three months but less
than twelve months maturity

Repayment of Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme

Interest received

Nel cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities

1

Proceeds from /(-) repayment of long-term borrowings (nel)

Proceeds from /(-) repaymeni ol short-term borrowings

Finance costs (net of TUFS Subsidy)

Proceeds from /(■) repaymeni ol compound financial liability

Nel cash used in financing activities

Net Increase/ (-) decrease in cash and cash equivalents
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For(he

year ended

31.03.2019

318.01

124.85

-6.75

-0.05

•1.33

0.75

0.06

0.04

-23.02

51.92

464.28

-184.53

-52.50

2.63

-28.74

48.73

4.55

16.04

3.52

275.18

-84.96

180.22

-102.27

9.20

52.97

-22.53

■ 24.46

-38.17

-48.88

91.00

-57.89

-65.00

-78.77

63.28

m

Tin Lakhs

For the

year ended

31.03.2018

185.59

187.77

-1.94

■0.05

2.11

-1.03

0.06

0.49

-13.57

61.45

420.88

-83.22

-34.36

-2.41

-19.86

-1.81

2.56

14.62

0.24

317.04

-88.95

227.09

-13.91

-2.87

10.90

-5.90

-156.80

-40.14 '

-34.72

-231.46

-10.35



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at (he end of the year

Components of cash and cash wouivalenta

Balances with Banks

- in current accounts

- in deposit accounts with maturity up 10 three months

Cheques, drafts on hand

Cash on hand

66.21

129.49

125.27

4.22

129.49

76.56

66.21

10.29

53.07

0.08

2.77

66.21

Notes

The Cash now statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows', as notified under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013. read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

2. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
In Lakhs

Particulars
For the For the

year ended year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Opening balance of borrowings

Borrowinos fnon-ctirrenO

■ Term Loans (including current maturities)

- Other long-term borrowings (Including current maturities)

Borrowings (current)

Cash Flows

Proceeds from term loans

Proceeds from other long-term borrowings

Repayment of term loans

Repayment ot other long-term borrowings

Increase/ (-) decrease in borrowings (current)

Closing balance of borrowings

Borrowings fnon-currenO

- Term Loans (including current maturities)

- Olher long-term borrowings (including current maturities)

Borrowings (current)

301.40

2S.62

53.65

10.00

108.52

2.01

SI.00

246.53

7.99

120.62

457.52

0.48

68.76

156.12

0.48

-40.14

301.40

29.62

The accompanying Notes ate an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report on even date allached

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL 4 ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Finn's Registration No. 00071 IN

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of

MISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

i

f
1

Place: Chandigarh

Dale: 30.05.2019

(RUCHIR SINGLA)

Partner

Membership No. 51934

(ANURAG GUPTA)

Managing Director

OIN-001S2BB8

(SHARAD GOEL)

Chief Financial Officer

(NIKHIL GOEL)

Director

DIN-01741446

(NIKITA SINGLA)

Company Secretary
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Changei in Equity for the year ended 31 it March 2019

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars A* at

31.03.2019

Number ol

shares

Amount

T In Lakhs

As at

31.03.2018

Number of

shares

Amount

Balance at tha beginning of the

reporting year

Changes in equity share capital during

the year

Balance at the end of (he reporting year

3735000

3735000

373.50

373.50

3735000

3735000

373.50

373.50

B. Other Equity

Particulars Reserves and Sun

Equity

component of

compound

financial

instruments

Capital

redemption

reserve

plus

Raisinsd

Earnings

Total

Current Year

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income tor the

year

Total comprehensive income lor the

year

Transferred to capital redemption

reserve

Less: Allocation ol amount of

redemption of . preference shares

relaling Io equity component

Closing Balance aa at 31.03.2019

Previous Year

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive Income (or (he

yoar

Total comprehensive income for the

year

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2018

43.05

•25.50

17.55

43.05

43.05

Significant Accounting Policies 2

Tha accompanying Notes are an Integral part o( (he Rnancial Statements.

In terms of our report on even dale altodied

lor ROMESH K. AGGARWAL « ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 00071 IN

65.00

S5.00

321.24

228.78

0.27

227.05

-65.00

364.29

226.78

0.27

227.0S

483.29

-25.50

565.84

179.9S

141.10

0,10

141.29

321.24

223.00

141.10

0.19

141.29

364.29

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Place; Chandigarh

Dale: 30.05.2019

(RUCHIR SINGLA)

Partner

Membership No. 519347

(ANURAG GUPTA)

Managing Director

DIN-00192888

(NIKHIL GOEL)

Director

DIN-01741446

(SHARAD GOEL) (NIKITA SINGLA)

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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H1SAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

i

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 j

1. Corporate and General Information ■)
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Company") is a Company domiciled in t
India with its registered office situated at Village & Post Dabra. Hisar -125005, Haryana. The Company

has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity shares are listed j
on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India. Corporate identification number of the Company is
L17112HR1992PLC031621 and the Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale

of cotton blended yarn.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30th May

2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the

financial statements.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of

the Companies Act. 2013. (the 'Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following

items:

- Defined benefit liabilities/ (assets) are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of

defined benefit obligation.

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at fair

value.

i

- Other financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. '

(b) Functional and Presentation Currency j

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees flNR1), which is also the Company's \
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off lo the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise C

indicated. I*

1
(c) Use of estimates and judgements ,1

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make ^

estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period lo period.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as

management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in

estimates are reflected in the, financial statements in the period in which changes are made.

Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised In the period in which the results are

known/ materialised.
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

i

(d) Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Division M of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the lime between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation In cash or cash equivalents, Ihe Company has ascertained Hs operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- It is expected to be realised in. or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company's normal
operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

- It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are
classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A Liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- It Is expected to be settled in the company's normal operating cycle:

- It Is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- ■ It is due to be settled wHhin 12 months after the reporting dale; or

- The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All-other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of Property. Plant and Equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment loss. If any. The Cost of an Hem of
Property, Plant and Equipment comprises:

- its purchase price including Import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

*

- any attributable expenditure directly attributable for bringing an asset to the location and the
working condition for its intended use and i

- the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the Hem and restoring the sHe on

which it is located, the obligation for which an entity Incurs either when the Hem is acquired or as
a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to
produce inventories during that period.
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Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance j
sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not i

put to use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-in-progress". j]

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised onry when it is ,
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and ihe cost of j
The Hern can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised m net profit m the ,
statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or re.irement of the asset and the resultant gains or
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the \
lower of Ihe carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. ^

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on diminishing balance method 1
(written down value method) in the manner and over the useful life of the assets prescnbed under Pad ./
■C- of Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013 except for certain items of plant and equipmenl having
gross carrying amount of * 10.18 Lakhs (previous year 7 10.18 Lakhs) where the management
estimates the life as 3 years based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation j|
carried out by external valuers. The management believes that the useful life of 3 years for the said }
assets best represent the period over which the management expects to consume future economic i
benefits embodied in these assets through its use. Hence the useful life of these assets .s different j
from Ihe useful life as prescribed under Part 'C1 of Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013. j

I.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipmenl are
reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

(0 Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if H Is highly probable that they will be recovered
primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets are general* measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value
less cosls to sell. A gain Is recognised for any subsequent Increases in fair value ess costs to sell of
an asset but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gam or loss
not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recogn.sed at ihe date of

de-recognitlon.

Once classified as held-for-sale. property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated. I

(g) Impairment of assets

a Financial assets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured
at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss

in statement of profit or loss.
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4

b Non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are

reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether Ihere is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For Impairment testing,

assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating

units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows

that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its

fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted

lo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refleds current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying

amounts of the assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods (if any), the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has

decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal Is made only to (he extent

that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(h) Inventories

Inventories (other than saleable waste) have been valued at lower of cost and nel realisable value.

However, raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written

down below cost If the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at
or above cost.

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in

bringing the Inventories lo their present location and condition: where the costs of purchase of

inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs

directly attributable lo the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts.

rebates and other similar-items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase. The cost in respect
of different classifications of inventories is computed as under:

- In case of raw materials, stores and spare-parts etc. at first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost method plus
direct expenses.

- in case of work-in-progress at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus
appropriate portion of conversion cost and other overheads incurred depending upon the stage of
completion.

- in case of finished goods at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus conversion

cost, packing cost and other overheads incurred to bring the goods up to their present location
and condition.

Saleable waste has been valued at estimated net realisable value.
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A^eTntdTeneX'an * a post-employment benefit plan other than a deJned
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the

covering eNgible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum
dth iapacitate or termination of ^p.oymen^ of an

covering eNgible employees of the Copy y
vested employee, at retirement, death, incapacitate or termination of ^^
amount based on the respective employee's salary and the (enure of employment with the

Company.
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i

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated

costs of completion and to make Ihe sale.

Provision for obsolete/ old inventories is made, wherever required.

ill Trade receivables . . . ,. ■)
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services Performedi in he ,
ordinary course of business. If the receivable is expected to be collected within a period of 12 months
or less from the reporting date (or In the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), they are |
classified as current assets otherwise as non-current assets. f'

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless 11 conlains a significant financing <f\
component in accordance with Ind AS 115 for pricing adjustments embedded in the contract. ,.^

111 Foreign currency transactions !
The foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by (
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the.functional currency and {.
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. j

The foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate at the end of each "Porting )
period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in .foreign currency:hall be
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange d.fferences ansing on the
settlement of monetary items or on transiting monetary Hems a. rates dllferen, '--'hose a, wh,ch
they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous nnanc.al statements shall be ,

recognised in profit or loss in the period In which they arise. • ,'

(k) Employee benefits -'

- Short-term employee benefits . j

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an und.scounled b.s. i andI .re ;
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid e.g.. under short-term cash bonus. If the Company has a present legal or construct ve
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by Ihe employee, and the

amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. ^

- Defined contribution plans ~-.-. J
For certain group of employees, employee benefit in the form of Provident fund. EmP'°y?«St«te -i
insurance Contribution and Labour Welfare fund are defined contribution plans. The Company I
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective fund. The Company
recognises contribution payable to these funds/ schemes as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service recervecI before
the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, ihe deficit payable to the scheme
is recognised as a [lability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contnbution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, hen
excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a

reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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are inves.ed in the schemes as permitted by the laws of India.

9

^! 9 °f a- defined benem P'an '" »• tatanw sheet as an
' ,R«measurement' comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of .he

Compensated absences

(I) Revenue recognition

Company.

Revenue from sale of goods

ampl0*w> are nOt Pemrtled t0 ^cumulate leave. Any

cashabte is paid io ihe i

Revenue from other than sale of goods
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[ml BorrowingsBorrowings . f

Blowings .,. »!«.»»Hr.ccnlsed « ... v«- .of
costs incurred. Borrowings are

facility will be drawn down.

(n| Borrowing costs .*, ™«c incurred in connection wim borrowing of funds. Borrowing

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs ,ncu red ,n «nn8C ^vcton of a qualifying asset
costs mat are directly attributable to the ac^u °;'Q^~assetPis one that necessariry takes
are capitalised as part of the cost oi ine - oih«r I -•■•inn /-nei« are recoanisod os

expensed U^pertod'lH which they are incurred.

(o)

«-.

in the periods in which the expense Is recognised.

,o compensa.. »nd

comp.ns..e lh.

wl.hln

co« p.

. In « G „ „, prtmaIy condi,ior,
»nd a,» c,e<l»M .o sla,.m=n, o. p-of.

—°pe""na
revenues,

(p) Financial Instruments asset of one entity and a financial

such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts.

Financial assets

initial rocognrtlon and measuromBnt financial assets not

acquisition of Ihe financial asset

Classifications measured at either amortised cost

■assels and
1 contractual cash flow characteristics of the flnancai assets.

Business model assessment obiectiva of a business model in which an asset is

information is provided to management.

A nnancia, asset is measured a, amortised cost oniy i, both o, the fol.owing conditions are me,:

.1
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a. it Is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets In order to collect
contractual cash flows.

b. the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

After Initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest rate ('EIR") method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into

account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the

EIR. The EIR amortisallon is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The

losses arising from impairment are recognised In the profit or loss.

Derecognitlon or financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet)

when: The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has

transferred its rights to receive cash flows from Ihe asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the

received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a assthrough'

arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered

into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and

rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks

and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of Ihe asset, the Company continues to

recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that

case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

On derecognitlon of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assel (or

the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the

consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii)

any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assessed on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its

assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by Ind
AS 109. financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the

initial recognition of the trade receivables.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement 1

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, amortised cost, as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially al fair value and. in the case of amortised cost, net of
■ directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their dassineation. as described below:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost ■ ... j
After Initial recognlilon. interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al

amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and :

loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. t
Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisrt.on and . Vj
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included as finance |

costs in the statemeni of profit and loss. , !

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilit.es designated upon ^

initial recognition as at fair value Ihrough profit or loss. j

Derecognition of financial liabilities J

The Company derecognises a financial liability when ils contractual obligations are d.scharged or ^

cancelled, or expired. J

(q) Measurement of fair value* -i

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a vanety of methods and
assumpiions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each report.ng date. All
methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never

actually be realised. j

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in :
the valuation techniques as follows: ',j

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (I.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the Inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall .nto different
levels of Ihe fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in Ils entirety in he
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level inpul that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the

reporting period during which the change has occurred.

fr) Cash and cash equivalents ^ _, .. *.„..
The Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity period of three months or less from the balance sheet dale, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement
cash and cash equivalents is as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. In the balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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(«) Earning per share

Basic earning per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eqully shares.

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if. as a result of a pasi event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future obligation at pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money

risks specific to liability. They are not discounted where they are assessed as current in nature.
Provisions are not made for future operating losses.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by ihe occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly with in the control of ihe Company or a present obligation lhat arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial
statements but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

(u) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred lax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised In Other Comprehensive Income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income or directly in equity respectively.

I. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on Ihe taxable Income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the lax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or

received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using

tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substanthvety enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis or simultaneously.

li. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that H is

probable that taxable profits will be available against, which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

difference arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available againsl which they

can be used.

Deferred lax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) tha
have been enacted or substanfrvely enacted by the balance sheet date..The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current lax assels and liabilities

on a net basis.

(v) Segment reporting . .
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Ch.ef
Operating Decision Maker "CODM" of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The Board of Doctors of the
Company has been identified as being the CODM and CODM reviews the operations of the Company

as a whole.

(w) Recent accounting pronouncements

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"). through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified
the following new and amendments to Ind AS which the Company has not applied as they are

effective from 1st April. 2019:

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs:

The amendments clarify lhat if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, lhal borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows
generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borowings. Company does not expect

any impact from this amendment.
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

In Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

4. Capital work-in-progress '

Capital work-in-progress ■ building 24.43

Total 24.43

5. Other financial assets (non-current)

Financial assets at amortized cost

Fixed Deposits with banks having more than twelve months maturity 20.69 29.89

(pledged with banks towards margin against bank guarantees) '

Interest accmed on fixed deposits with banks 8.47 8.27

Loans

Security deposits 21.13 21.32

Total ' 50.29 59.48

6. Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets

Impact of Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Government grant

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Unwinding of upfront fees

Deferred expenditure

Derivative financial instruments carried at FVTPL

Total deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets (net) (refer note no. 34)

7. Other non-current assets

Capital advances 1.07 -

Advances other than capital advances

Prepaid expenses 2.13 3.31

Other advances . 0-09 <Lli

66.66

61.85

128.51

0.12

0.04

0.25

0.41

128.10

57.94

70.75

128.69

0.24

0.06

0.30

128.39

Total 3.29 3.46
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Particulars

31

8. Inventories

(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise
staled)

Raw materials

Work-in -progress

Finished goods

,,•" Stores and spare-parts etc.

Saleable waste (valued at nel realisable value)
lotal

it

Goods-in-transii included in above inventories are as under:

Raw materials

Stores and spare-parts etc.

Inventories are hypothecated lo secure short-term borrowings (refer note 21)

9. Trade receivables

(unsecured, considered good)

Trade receivables

lotal

"Tin

As at As

.03.2019 31.03

397.41

101.14

178.61

33.65

2.91

713.72

5.29

0.98

238.56

238.56

A : Trade receivables are hypothecated to secure short-term borrowings (refer note 21)

m

Lakhs

at

.2018

282.39

85.76

107.80

50.70

2.54

529.19

4.04

0.17

188.81

188.81

B: No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either
severally or jointly with any other person. Further, no trade or other receivables are due from firms or
private companies in which any director is a partner, or director or member.

C: The Company's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to
receivables is disclosed in note 39.

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Banks

- in current accounts

- - in deposit accounts with maturity up to three months

Cheques, drafts on hand

Cash on hand

lotal

11. Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

-Deposits with more than twelve months maturity

-Deposits with more than three monlhs but less than twelve months
maturity

Less: Amounts disclosed as other financial assets (non-current) (refer
nole 5]

lotal
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125.27

4.22

129.49

20.B9

20.69

20.69

-

trade

10.29

53.07

0.08

2.77

66.21

29.89

52.97

82.86

29.89

52.97



HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

In Lakhs

Particulars
As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

12. Other financial assets (current)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest receivable

Insurance claim receivable

Financial assets at fair value through Profit and loss

Derivative financial Instruments

Total

13. Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance income tax (net of provision for current tax)

Total

1.20 2.S4

2.64

1.33

2.53

5.04

5.04

5.48

1.16

1.16

14. Other current assets

Advances other than capital advances

Advances to suppliers of goods and services

Other advances

Taxes and duties deposiled under protest

Taxes and duties recoverable/ refundable

Prepaid expenses

Interest subsidy receivable

Total

-

0.59

4.85

54.45

2.74

5.23

67.86

0.10

0.25

4.85

28.53

2.82

2.46

39.01

15. Assets classified as held for sate

Property, plant and equipment held for sale

Total

1.09

1.09

During the year, the Company has decided to sell a part of obsolete plant and equipment which was
originally purchased for production and manufacturing. The sale is expected to be completed within next
financial year. The assets are presented within total assets of the bearing segment. There are no

liabilities attached to these assets.

Non - current fair value measurements : Assets classified as held for sale during the reporting period
are measured at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cosl to sell at the lime of
^classification Fair value ol the assets was determined using expected market realizable value using
the management assessment. This is a level 3 measuremenl and key inputs under this approach are
price per assel comparable for the machine in similar business and technology..
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16. Equity Share capital
r In Lakhs

Part.culars As at As a,

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Number of

shares
Aulliuiisud

Equily shares of ? 10/- each 8000000

Issued

Equity shares of? 10V- each 3735000

lulal

Subscribed and fully paid

Equity shares of ? 10/- each 3735000

lUldl

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding
year:

Equity shares of ? 10/- each:

Particulars Number of

shares

Number of shares and amount at the beginning of 3735000
the year

Change in number of shares and amount during

the year

Number of shares and amounl al the end of the 3735000
• year

Amounl Number of

shares

800.00 8000000

SOO.OO

373.50 3735000

373.50

373.50 3735000

373.50

at the beginning and at the

Amount Number of

shares

373.50 3735000

373.50 3735000

Amount

800.00

800.00

373.50"'

373.50

373.50

373.50

end of the

Amounl

373.50

373.50

The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the
- distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:

Iguily. shares; The company has one class of equity share having par value of 7 10/- per share Every member
holding equity shares and entitled to vote and present in person or by proxy shall have voting rights which shall
be in the same proportion as Ihe capital paid on the equity share or shares (whether fully paid up or partly paid
up) held by him bears to the total paid up equily capital of the company. -

Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares-
Name of the shareholder Number of

shares

fcqutty shares of T10/- each:
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

tin Lakhs

Particulars
As at

31.03.2019

As at

31.03.2018

17. Other Equity

(a) Equity component of redeemable preference shares

Balance at ihe beginning of the year

Less: Allocation of amount of redemption of preference shares relal.ng lo

equity component

Balance at the end of ihe year

(b) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Less: Transferred to capital redemplion reserve

Balance at Ihe end of the year

(c) Capital redemption reserve

Balance at ihe beginning of the year

Add: Transferred from retained earnings

Balance al the end of the year

Total

43.05

25.50

17.55

43.05

43.05

321.24

226.78

0.27

227.05

65.00

483.29

179.95

141.10

0.19

141.29

-

321.24

65.00

65.00

565.84 364.29

Tne Description of tne nature and purpose ot each reserve within equity is as follows:

o, redeemable preference shares : Under p,e*us =AAP. 5% redeemable

year 2018-1B.

(b) Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the prom lhal the Company has earned .ill date, less any
transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to investors.

^ - «-*■ - -r ind AS 19. Empioyee Beneflts:

. eluding amounts included in ne, interest on the ne, deHned

effec, o, lh. asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in ne, interes. on the net

defined benefit liability (asset).

Company.
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In Lakhs
Particulars As

31.03

at

.2019

110.73

42.75

4.77

158.25

As at

31.03.2018

192.02

-

29.04

221.06

18. Borrowings (non-current)

Secured (*}

Term loans from financial institution

Term loan from bank

Other long-term borrowing from bank

Unsecured

Liability component of redeemable preference shares

Total

(*) Nature of security and guarantee by directors or others:

Term loans from financial institution:

Term loans from financial institution i.e., Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) are
secured by:

A. Primary Security:

(i) first charge by way of hypothecation in favour of SIDBI of the plant, machinery, equipment, tools,

spares, accessories and all other assets which have been or proposed to be acquired under the
projects/schemes.

B. Collateral Security:

(0 Extension of first charge by way of hypothecation in favour of SIDSI of all the borrower's movables.
including the movables, plant, machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, office equipments,

computers, furnitures and fixtures, located al 9th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road. VPO Dabra. Hisar!
Haryana and acquired after 01.04.2011.

(ii) Extension of first pari passu charge with Punjab National Bank by way of mortgage of all immovable

properties of the company, both present and future situated at fllh KM Stone. Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO

Dabra. Hisar, Haryana admeasuring 34 kanals and 14 marlas including factory shed, building and
structure thereon.

Term loans from financial Institution i.e..-Small Industries Developmenl Bank of India (SIDBI) with
sanctioned amount of ? 800.00 Lakhs are further covered by irrevocable and unconditional personal

guarantee of the director of the company namely Sh. Anurag Gupta and former directors of the

company namely Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupla and Sh. Triloki Nath Goel. Out of these term loans of ?

800.00 Lakhs from SIDBI, term loan with sanctioned amount of ? 310.00 Lakhs is also covered by

Irrevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of former director of Ihe company namely Sh. M.L

Kansal and term loan with sanctioned amount of 7 490.00 Lakhs is covered by irrevocable and
unconditional personal guarantee of Sml. Sapna Kansal, director of the company.

Term loan from bank:

Term loan from Punjab National Bank is secured by:

A, Primary Security:

0) Hypothecation of machinery, other assets and equipments purchased with the bank loan.
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SPSffTSl .he exists (except assets financed by 81DBI) and future block assets o. .he
company.

fin Exiension of first part passu charge with SIDBI by way of equitable mortgage of factory land
measuring 34 Kanals and 14Farias and building constructed .hereon (20993.5 sq. yards) loca.ed at 9th
KM Stone, Hlsar Bhlwani Road. VPO Dabra, Hisar. Haryana.

Term loan irom Punjab National Bank with sanctioned amount of t 54.51 Lakhs is further covered b*
Irrevocable and unconditional persona, guarantee o. the directors of the company namely Sh. Anurag ,

.Gupta, Smt. Sapna Kansal and Sh. Nikhll Goel. _. ,

V
Other long-term borrowing from bank: 1

Other long term borrowing from bank is secured by hypothecation of mo.or veh,cle acquired out of the
proceeds of .he said borrowing from bank. \.i j

Terms of repayment:

Term loans from financial institution: M ...

(i) Terni loan with sanctioned and disbursed amount of Z 293.00 Lakhs is repayable»,n 66 month*
Ss.almen.s commencing 16 months after the date of firs, disbursement i.e 02.08 20 1 The rs, 6 ,_
instalments of 7 3.00 Lakhs each, next 18 Instalments of ? 4.00 Lakhs each next 18 ins.a merits o' T j
5.10 Lakhs each, next 11 ins.a.ments of 7 6.25 Lakhs each and the las. final ^.almenl < T 845
Lakhs. Rale o. interest @ 1150% p.a. as at 31.03.2018 #. The aforesart term loan from SIDB. has .,
been squared up during the financial year 2018-2019. 'l

(ii) Term loan with sanctioned and disbursed amount of ? 17.00 Lakhs is «PJ» J" " ^
nstalmenls commencing 18 months after the date of first disbursement i.e.. °2.0».20ii. ™e> first
ins.almen.s of T 0.15 Lakh each, nex, 18 Ins.a.men.s of ? 0.25 Lakh each next 18 ^«'™^of* "°
Lakh each next 11 instalments of * 0.35 Lakh each and the las. final mstalment of * 0.55 Lakh. Rate
^interest @ 11.50% P.a. as at 31.03.2018 #. The aforesak. term loan from SIDBI has been squared up
during the financial year 2018-2019.

flli) Term loan with sanctioned amount of X 490.00 Lakhs (disbursed only 7 431 23 Lakhs) is <*?»****>
n 72 monthly instalments as per original sanclioned amount comprising of firs. 71 month* m «a.m n
of * 6 81 Lakhs each and last instalmen. of * 6.49 Lakhs commencng after a moratorium of 12

ri M 2015 /^^^^"^'^
of * 6 81 Lakhs each and last insta

months from .he date of firs, disbursement of the loan during May 2015. /^.^^^^
l th id term loan is repayable in first 63 monthly instalments of

months from .he date of firs, disbursement of the loa g y /^.^^^
loan account is T 431.23 Lakhs only, the said term loan is repayable in first 63 monthly instalm
6.B1 L^chs each and last ins.almen. of T 2.20 Lakhs with effect from May 2016. Rate of -merest @
10.25% p.a. as at 31.03.2019 and as at 31.03.2016 #. ^ |n La|[hs

Term loans from financial institu.ion

heduiefl 2018-2019 2019-201
108.52 81.1

2021-2022

29.44

# Rale of interest is without considering interest subsidy under TUF scheme.

rlZ loan 7? M.R5i'Lakhs from Punjab National Bank is repayable in 60 monthly Instalments of <T
0.91 Lakh each commencing with effect from April 2019. Rate of .nteres. Q 8.65% p.a. as at

31.03.2019. r In Lakhs

Term loan from bank

rhedule {") ; 2019-20 22-
10.90

2022-23 2023-24

10.90 10.91
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Other long-term borrowing from bank:

Other long-term borrowing from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to ? 10.00 Lakhs Is repayable In 36

equated monthly instalments (EM Is) of? 0.32 Lakh (Including interest) commencing from 10th August

2018. Rate of interest® 9.05% p.a. as at 31.03.2019.

T In Lakhs

Year wise repayment schedule (") 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Other long term borrowing from bank 210J 3.22 3.52

2021-22

1.25

(") Figures of year wise repayment schedule stated in above paragraphs includes current maturities of

long term debls shown separately in Note 23.

Liability component of redeemable preference shares:

Under previous GAAP, 5% redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of 7 65.00 Lakhs were

classified as part of total equity. However, under Ind AS the non-cumulative redeemable preference

shares are compound financial instruments, where the liability component outstanding at the date of

transition is bifurcated by first valuing the debt component with the residual being equity. The liability

component is determined as the present value of Ihe eventual redemption amount of ? 65.00 of

preference shares, discounted at the rate at which the Company could issue a similar instrument with a

similar credit standing but without the feature of discretionary dividends during its life. The same has

been redeemed during the financial year ending as at 31.03.2019.
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in Lakhs

Particulars As at

31.03.2019

As at

31.03.2018

100.22

100.22

149.39

149.39

83.47

83.47

156.18

156.18

19. Other financial liabilities (non-current)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other interest accrued but not due (**)

Total

20. Other non-current liabilities

Deferred revenue for Governmenl grant (")

Total

f~) In the past, the Company has received Governmenl grant under Export Promotion Capital Goods

(EPCG) scheme of the Government of India, subject to fulfilment of export obligation as primary

condition. Against one of the licenses issued under EPCG scheme, the export obligation period expires

on 23rd June. 2019, whereof the Company has partly fulfilled associated export obligation and for rest

of the unfulfilled export obligation against the aforesaid license, the Company intends to apply to The

Directorate General of Foreign Trade CDGFT") for extension of export obligation period for another 2

years beyond its original expiry date i.e.. 23rd June, 2019.

Therefore, the Company has presented deferred revenue government granl amounting to ? 11.82

Lakhs and interest accrued thereon amounting lo 7 12.12 Lakhs in respect of such EPCG license as

"other non-curreni liabilities" and 'other financial liabilities (non-current)' respectively in the financial

statements as on 31.03.2019 instead of "other current liabilities" and "other financial liabilities (current)".

21. Borrowings (current)

Secured ("*)

Loans repayable on demand from banks

Working capital borrowings

Total

120.62 29.62

120.62 29.62

("•) Nature of security and guarantee by directors or others:

Loans repayable on demand from banks (working capital borrowings) having sanctioned amount of !
200.00 Lakhs Is secured by hypothecation of stocks of various raw materials viz manufacturing material,

raw materials including excisable raw materials, stocks in process, semi finished goods, finished goods

(Including bought out finished goods) and hypothecation of entire receivables/ book debts.

The said facility from Punjab National Bank is further secured by first charge on machinery of the

company installed up to 31.03.2011 and first charge ranking parl passu with Small Industries
Development Bank of India (SIDBI) by way of equitable mortgage of all the immovable properties i.e..

land and building constructed thereon of the company situated at VPO Dabra, Distl, Hissar.

admeasuring about 34 kanal and 14 marlas owned by the company.

Loans repayable on demand from banks (working capital borrowings) are further covered by Irrevocable

and unconditional personal guarantee of the director of the company namely Sh. Anurag Gupta. Sml

Sapna Kansal and Sh. Nikhil Goel.
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In Lakhs

Particulars As at

31.03.2019

As at

31.03.2018

22. Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

-Total outstanding dues creditors other (nan micro enterprises and small

enterprises

Total

Additional information

Details relating to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises:

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown

separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each

accounting yean

(b) the amount of interest paid by Ihe buyer in terms of Section 16 of the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006. along

with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year

(c) the amouni of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year] but without adding the interest specified under Micro. Small and

Medium Development Act, 2006

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accounting yean and

(e) Ihe amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, until such date when the Interest dues above are

actually paid to the small enterprises, (or Ihe purpose of disallowance of

a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006.

23. Other financial liabilities (current)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturities of long-term borrowings

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Other interest accrued

Creditors against capital goods

Employees liabilities

Accrued expenses

Total

24. Other current liabilities

Advances from customers

Slatulory remittances

Deferred revenue from Government grant

Total

2.23

85.50

87.73

2.23

1.71.

36.29

38.00

1.71

2.23

95.84

1.64

-

2.08

16.03

37.84

153.43

35.72

9.01

0.04

44.77

1.71

108.52

1.88

33.38

0.16

14.51

36.73

195.18

28.14

2.55

22.57

51.26

25. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Total

3.64

3.64

0.49

0.49
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In Lakhs

Particulars For the

year ended

31.03.2019

For the

year ended

31.03.2018

26. Revenue From Operations

Sale of products

Manufactured goods

Other operating revenues

Sale of waste

Sale ot scrap

Deferred Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme

Total

3020.29

3020.29

20.43

0.34

6.75

27.52

3047.81

2851.21

2851.21

20.30

0.14

1.94

22.38

2873.59

27. Other Income

Inleresl income

- on bank deposits (at amortised cost)

- on other financial assets (at amortised cost)

Fair value gain on financial inslrumenls al FVTPL (*)

Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation

Deferred Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment

Total

4.43

18.59

1.33

1.48

0.05

25.88

12.18

1.39

0.00

2.14

0.05

15.76

(*) Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to foreign exchange

forward contracts that did not qualify for hedge accounting.

28. Cost of materials consumed

Cost of raw materials consumed

Opening stock of raw materials

Add: purchases of raw materials

Less :

Sale of raw materials

Closing stock of raw materials

Cost of materials consumed • Total

278.34

1874.49

2152.83

0.05

392.12

1760.66

269.41

1714.95

1984.36

7.98

278.34

1698.04
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In Lakhs

Particulars For the

year ended

31.03.2019

For the

year ended

31.03.2018

29. Changes in inventories ol finished goods and work-in-progress

Closing inventories

Finished goods 178.61 107.80

Saleable waste 2.91 2.54

Work-in-progress 101.14 85.76

Opening inventories

Finished goods

Saleable waste

Work-in-progress

<•) Increase/ decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-ln-

Finished goods -70.81 -1.57

Saleable wasle -0.37 0.16

Work-in-progress -15.38 -36.61

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress - -86.56 -38.02

total

282.66

107.80

2.54

85.76

196.10

196.10

106.23

2.70

49.15

158.08

30. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Coniribulion to provident and other funds

(Net of Government grant amounting to ? 0.58 Lakhs (previous year

?nM)

Gratuity expense

Staff welfare expenses

Total

31. Finance costs

Interest expenses #

Interest paid on shortfall In payment of advance Income tax

Other borrowing costs

Total

# Net of interest subsidies under TUF (Technology Upgradatlon Fund) Scheme amounting to ? 4.29

Lakhs (previous year T 7.60 Lakhs).

a Preference Shares Interest Redemption ? 10.47 Lakhs.

147.00

8.38

4.01

0.01

159.38

51.14

0.18

0.60

51.92

128.60

9.00

3.53

0.31

141.44

60.44

0.32

0.69

51.45

32. Depreciation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)

Total

124.65 187.77

124.65 187.77
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Tin Lakhs

Particulars For the

year ended

31.03.2019

For the

year ended

31.03.2018

33. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts

Packing material consumed

Diesel consumed

Power expenses

Contract Labour charges and expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Machinery

- Buildings

Insurance charges

Fees and subscription

Auditors remuneration

- Audi! fees

- Tax audit fees

• Certification fees

- Audit expenses

Legal and professional charges

Fait value loss on financial inslrumenls at FVTPL

Freight and cartage outward

Clearing and forwarding charges (export)

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

120.69

32.61

112.53

397.70

14.72

11.76

0.51

3.61

3.99

1.35

0.25

0.40

0.00

9.96

0.00

15.18

3.41

16.94

87.38

26.75

75.57

399.30

14.13

11.34

0.00

3.64

5.14

1.35

0.22

0.60

0.05

0.79

2.11

4.67

1.28

18.76

745.63 653.08
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34. A. Movement in deferred tax balances Tin Lakhs

Particulars As at

01.04.2018

Recognised in

profit or loss

Recognised

InOCI

As at

31.03.2019

Deferred tax assets

Impact of depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Government grant

Total deferred tax assets (a)

Deferred tax liabilities

Unwinding of upfront lees

Deferred expenditure

Derivative financial instruments carried at FVTPL

Total deferred tax liabilities (b)

Deferred tax assets (net) (a-b)

57,94

7O.7S

8.72

-8.00

66.66

61.85

1Z8.S9 -0.18 128.51

0.24

0.06

-0,12

-0.02

0.25

0.12

0.04

0.25

0.30 0.11 0.41

128.39 -0.29 128.10

In Lakhs

Particulars As at

01.04.2017

Recognised in

profit or loss

Recognised

inOCl

As at

31.03.201 B

Deferred tax assets

Impact of depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Government grant

Total deferred tax assets (a)

Deferred tax liabilities

Unwinding of upfront fees

Deferred expenditure

Derivative financial instruments carried at FVTPL

Total deferred tax liabilities (b)

Deferred tax assets (net) (a-b)

B. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

37.58

54.23

20.36

16.52

57.94

70.75

91.81 36.88 128.69

0,40

0.07

0.54

■0.16

-0.01

■0.54

0.24

0.06

1.01

90.80

-0.71

-

37.59

0.30

128.39

r In Lakhs

Particulars For the Fof the

year ended year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Current tax expenses

Currenl tax

Deferred tax expenses

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total Tax Expenses

C. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

90.94

90.94

0.29

0.29

91.23

62.08

82.08

■37.59

-37.59

44.49

f In Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2019

Before tax Tax

(Expenses)/

Income

Net of tax

For the year ended 31.03.2018

Before tax Tax

(Expenses)/

Income

Net of tax

Remeasurement of defined

benefit plans

0.37 -0.10 0.27 0.26 -0.07 0.10

0.37 ■0.10 0.27 0.2S -0.07 0.19
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0. Reconciliation of effective tax rate 7 tn Lakhs

Particulars For the For tha

year ended year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Profit before lax

Company's domestic tax rate

Tax using the company's domestic lax rate

Tax effect ol:

Impact ol depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Deferred Government grant relating to EPCG Scheme

Others

Income lax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss

Efiective tax rate

318.01

27.8200%

88.47

-2.88

2.40

3.22

91.23

28.6880%

185.59

27.5525%

51.13

-3.19

•4.48

1.03

44.49

23.9730% . I
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T In Lakhs

Particulars For the For the

year ended year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

35. Earnings per equity share (EPS)

The calculation of Earning Per Share (EPS) as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss has been

made In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 33 on "Earning Per Share".

A statement on calculation of EPS is as under:

Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders

Total (a)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

(nos.)

(Nominal value of equity share -? 10/- each)

Total (b)

Basic EPS (7) (a/b)

Diluted EPS (7) (a/b)

Note: There are no potential equity shares

226.78

226.78

3735000

3735000

141.10

141.10

3735000

3735000

6.07

6.07

3.78

3.78

In Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

37.83

537.51

(b) Commitments;

(i) Performance bonds executed in favour of The President of India

against exports obligations for purchase of capital goods under Export

Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme.

Total 537.51

37. There is no impairment of assets during the year.

38. No amount of dividend has been proposed to be distnbuled to equity for the period.

38.00

36. Contingent liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):-

(a) Contingent liabilities:

(i) Counter guarantees issued to Punjab National Bank in respect of the 32.98

guarantees issued by the said bank in favour of various government

authorities,

(ii) Disputed demand in respect of Value Added Tax and Central Sales 4.65 4.85

Tax.

Total 42.85

620.95

620.35
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39. Financial instrument! -accounting cbasOTcatloni and (air value measurements

The lair values ol (he financial assets and liabilities are included ai the amount si which the instrument could be exchanged

in a current transaction between wining parties, other than In a (weed or liquidation sales.

The following, methods and assumptions were used lo estimate the laii values:

1. Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bonk balances othor than cash and cash equivalents, security deposits.

interest accrued but not due on borrowings, trade and other shon-ierm receivables, payables. loans and advances

and other current HablftJes approximated their carrying amounts largely duo lo the short-term maturities ol these

instruments.

2. The Company uses Bio following hierarchy lor determining and disclosing the (air value ol flnandal instruments by

valuation technique.

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets tor Identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques lor which all inputs which have a significant effect an the recorded fair value are observable.

otther dlrHdly or Indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effeel on the recorded fair value that are not based on

observable market data. Fair value is generally determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

A. Accounting classification* and fair values

The lonowlng tables shows the carrying amounts and fair values ol financial assets and flnandal liabilities, induding their

levels in the fair value hlerardiy.

A* at 31 March 2019

Financial instruments by category Carrying

Value Level t

Fair Value

Level 2

r In Lakhs

Level 3

Financial assets at FVTPL

Derivative financial Instruments

Financial a*«et> at amontsed costs

Security Deposits

Fined Deposits (including interest accrued thereon)

Financial assets where tair value is same as carrying value

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Claim receivables

Others

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Borrowings - lenri loans Irom financial Institutions and banks

(Including current maturities)

Financial liabilities where fair value it same as carrying value

Trade payables

Borrowings (cunenl)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Other Interest accrued but not due

Creditors against capital goods

Employees liabilities

Accrued expenses

1.33

21.13

29.16

233.56

129.4g

1.20

410,87

254.09

87.73

120.62

1.64

100.22

2.08

1B.03

37.84

1.33

21.13

30.16

236.56

129.40

1.20

420.S7

254.08

87.73

12062

1 64

100.22

2.0S

18.03

37.84

620.23 820.15

Financial assets recorded as

Non-current

Current

50.29

370,58

420.(7

Financial liabilities recorded as

Non-current 258.47
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Current 361.78

620.25

AiM 31 March 201J

Financial Instruments by category Carrying

Value Level 1

Fair Value

Level 2

T in Lakhs

Level 3

Financial assets at FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Financial asuts at amortised costs

Security Deposits

Fixed Deposits [including interesl accrued thereon]

Financial assats where fair valua !■ lama as carrying value

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Claim receivables

Others

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Borrowings - lerm loans from financial institutions

(Including current maturities)

Liability component of redeemable preference shares

Financial Uabilttie* wtiara fair value it same as carrying value

Trade payabtes

Borrowings (current)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Other interesl accrued but not due

Creditors against capital goods

Employees liabilities

Accrued expenses

Financial assets recorded as

Non-current

Current

Financial liabilities recorded as

Non-current

Currenl

21.32

33.10

168.81

66.21

52.87

2.64

2.84

370.95

300.54

29.04

38.00

. 29.02

1.68

116.65

0.16

14.51

30.73

567.33

59.4S

311.47

370.85

304.53

282.80

567.33

21.32

3S.16

186.81

66.21

52.97

2.64

2.84

370.95

300.54

38.00

29.62

1.68

116.85

0.16

14.51

36.73

S31.29

-

29.04

29.04

S. Measurement of fair values

Assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:

Market approach - Prices and other relevant information generated by market'transactIons involving Identical or comparable

assets or liabilities. '

Income approach - Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to'lis present value using the discounting

methodology.

Cost approach - Replacement cost method.

Quoted market prices In active markets are available tor investments In securities and. as such, these investments are

classified within Level I.
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Level 1 hierarchy includes financial Instruments measured using quoted prtces. This Includes listed equity instruments which

ate traded in slock exchanges and valued using closing price a) I he reporting dale.

The (air value o( financial instruments that are nol traded in an active market Is determined using valuation techniques. The

Company uses ils Judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumpiions Uiat are mainly based on the conditions

existing at the end of each reporting period.

The following laWe shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fait values lor financial

instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheet, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used. Related

valuation processes are described In note 2 (q).

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Valuation technique

Derivative financial instruments consist of foreign

currency forward exchange contracts. Fair values

for derivative financial instruments are based on

bank's quotations and are classified as Level 2

Amount estimaled based on the estimated

probability of the outcome of litigation based on the

management's assessment supported by legal

advice.

Type

Forward Exchange

Contracts

Claims and Other

Recoverable

Signiflcam

unobservable inputs

Not Applicable

Nol Applicable

Inter-relationship

between significant

unobservable inputs

and fair value

measurement

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

There have been no transfers between level 1. 2 and 3 (luring the current or previous financial year.

Reconciliation of level 3 lair value*

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for level 3 fair values.
T in Lakhs

31.03.2016 31.035018

Balance as at 1 April

Fair value adjusted during the year

Additions durino the year i_ —

Balance as at 31 March ;_ ;_

Financial ritk management

■ credll risk [see point no. (if) below]

liquidity risk ■ (see point no. (iii) below): and

- markel risk - Isee point no. (Iv) below

I. Risk management framework

The Company's board ol directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The boar) ol directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible

lot developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The committee reports regularty to the boaid

of directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established lo identify and analyse the risks laced by the Company, lo

sal appropriate risk limits and controls and lo monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and

systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. a
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H.

The Company's risk committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of Ihe risk management framework in relation to Ihe

risks faced by ihe Company. The audit committee is assisted In ils oversight role by Internal audit. Internal audit

undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews ol risk management controls and procedures. Ihe results o( which are

reported lo the audit committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk ol financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to

meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally irom the Company's receivables from customers.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Trad* receivable*

The Company's exposure'to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics ol each customer.

However, management also considers the factors that may Influence the credit risk of its customer base, including tfie

default risk ol Ihe industry and country In which customers operate.

The Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually lor

creditworthlness before the Company's standard payment and delivery lerms and conditions are offered. The

Company's review includes market check, industry le erf back, past financlois and external ratings, il they are available.

and in some cases bank references. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed quarterly. Any sales

exceeding those limits require approval from the risk management committee.

More than 40% of the Company's customers have been transacting with the Company from many years, and no

significant impairment loss has been recognized against these customers. In monitoring customer credit risk,

customers are reviewed according to their credit charaderisiics. Including whether they are en individual or a legal

entity. I heir geographic location. Industry and existence of previous financial difficulties.

The Company establishes an allowance for Impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect ol trade

and other receivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of compulation of expected credit

loss for irade receivables.

The carrying amount net of loss allowances of trade receivables is 31 March 2019 Rs. 218.56 Lakhs and 31 March

2016 Rs. 186.81 Lakhs.

A summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables based on the ageing is as follows
in Lakhs

Particulars Less than

6 Months

9-12

Months

More than

12 Months

Total

As at 31.03.2019

Asal31.03.2Oia

236.56

188.81

238.56

188,81

During the period, the Company has made no write-offs ol trade receivables, il does not expect to receive future cash

flows or recoveries from collection of cash flows previously written off.

Reconciliation ol loss allowance proMsion - Trade receivables In Lakhs

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

III.

Opening Balance

Change In loss allowance

Closing balance

Liquidity riik

Liquidity risk is the risk lhat the Company will encounter difficulty In meeting the obligations associated with ils financial

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach lo managing liquidity

is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet Its liabilities when they are due. under both

normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company uses aalvtty-based costing lo cost Ils products, which assists il in monitoring cash now requirements

and optimising its cash return on Investments.
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Trie following are the remaining contractual malurMres ol financial liabilities al the reporting date. Trie amounts are

gross and tin discounted, and include contractual inlemst paymenls:

r in Lakhs

As at 31 Marcll2019

■

Borrowings

Term loans from financial institution & banks including

Interest

Short-term borrowings from banks

Trade payaUes

Other interest accrued but nol due

Creditors against capital goods

Employees liabilities

Accrued expenses

Total

As at 31 March 201B

Borrowings

Term loans Iron) financial Institution Including interest

Liability component ol redeemable preference shares

Short-lBrm borrowings from banks

Trade payaMes

Other Interest accrued but not due

Creditors agolnst capital goods

Employees liabilities

Accrued expenses

Total

Less than

1 year

87.48

120.62

87.73

-

2.03

16.03

37.84

361.78

Less man

1 year

1 1 0.40

-

29.62

38.00

33.38

o.te

14.51

38.73

262.80

1-S Year

158.25

-

-

100.22

■

-

-

258.47

1-5 Year

1S2.02

29.04

-

■

83.47

-

•

-

304.83

Total

255.73

120.62

87.73

100.22

2.08

18.03

37.B4

620.25

T In Lakhs

Total

302.42

20.04

20.62

38.00

118.85

0.16

14.51

36.73

667.33

The Interest payments on variable Interest rate loans In the table above relied spot Interest rates at the reporting date

and Ihosa amounts may change as market Interest rales change. However, the Company doesn't expect significant

different amount on account of change in market inleresl rate changes.

Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are lo

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so In at they can continue to provide returns lor shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders: and

-maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ol capital.

The Company's policy is lo maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain Investor, creditor and market confidence

and to sustain the future development of the business.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid lo

shareholders, rolum capital lo shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets lo reduce debt, consisleni with others In

the industry. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which Is calculated as:

Not debt (lolal borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total equily* (as shown in the Balance Shoel).

The gearing ralios were as follows:
in Lakhs

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Net Debt

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Adjusted net debt

Total equity

Adjusted nel debt to equity ratio

818.05

129.49

666.56

930.34

0.73

775.26

66.21

700.05

737.70

o.ee
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rv. Market risk

Market risk is ihe risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rales, interesi rates and equity prices ■

wffl affect the Company's Income or the value of its holdings ol financial instruments. The objective of market risk

management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the

return.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed lo currency risk ro the extent that there Is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales

and purchases are denominated. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are US dollars

and Euro. The Company uses forward exchange contracts lo hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than

one year from the reporting dale.

Exposure lo currency rlik

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (based on notional amounts) as

reported to Ihe management is as follows.

As si 31 March 2019 Currency Amount in

foreign

currency

Exchange Unhedged

rale (In amount

absolute (Rs. In

Rs.) Lakhs

Trade receivables

Advance from customers

Trade payable*

Advance to suppliers

Net exposure in respect ol recognised assets and liabilities

USD

EUR

USD

EUR

NA

NA

16069

22636

25866

6000

66.65

76.60

60.65

76.80

_

It.03

18.00

17.76

4.73

-

_

51.52

As at 31 March 2018 Currency Amount in

foreign

currency (

In Lakhs)

Exchange

rate (In

absolute

Rs.)

Unhedged

amount

{Rs. In

Lakhs

Trade receivables

Advance from customers

Trade payables

Advance to Suppliers

Net exposure In respect ol recognised assets and liabilities

NA

NA

NA

NA

Senttlrvrryanalyiri '9

A reasonably possible slrengthenlng (weakening) ol Ihe tNR, Euro against all other currencies at 31 March would have

affected the measuremenl ol financial Instrumenls denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or

loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and ignores any

impact ol forecast sales and purchases.

Currency

Euro

USD

Movement in

foreign Currency

5% movement

5% movement

. 31.03

Increase in

profit

! 1.14

1.44

201S

Decrease

In proflt

-1.14

-1.44

31.03.2018

Increase In Decrease

profit in prom

-
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is tha risk that the fair vakie or future cash (lows ol a financial instalment will fluctuate because ol
changes in prevailing market interest rates. The Company's exposure lo the risk due to changes in interest rales

relates primarily to Hie Company's short-term and long-term borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company

constantly monilors the credit markets and revisits its financing slrategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and

financing cost.

The Company is not exposed lo significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dales.

interest Rate Exposure: ? In Lakhs
Particulars 31.03-2019 31.03-20Ta

Floating Rate Borrowings 368.36 332.M

Fixed Rate Borrowings 7" 29-04

Total Borrowings '".35 361.08

Interest rate sensitivities lor floating rate borrowings (Impact of increase in 1%): T in Lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Floating. Rale Borrowings '3.QiL ^3i.
-3.68 -3-3Z

Nole: II the rate is decreased by 1% profit will Increase by an equal amounl.

Interest rate sensllivity has been calculaled assuming ihe borrowings outstanding at ihe reporting date have been

outstanding for the entire reporting period.

i

i
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5.61

2.59

0.16

6.32

2.54

0.14

40. Employee benefits

A. Defined Contribution Schemes

The Company deposits an amount determined at a fixed percentage of basic pay every

month to the State administered Provident Fund. Employee State Insurance (ESI) and

Labour Welfare fund for the benefit of the employees.

t i

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit S Loss is as follows :

,_ ^ \ 7 In Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

■tProvident.fund paid to the authorities

Employee state insurance paid to the authorities

Contribution to other funds ( Labour welfare fund.)

Total" ' *. 8.36 " 9.00

B. Defined Benefit Schemes

Gratuity

The Company operates a gratuity plan administered through Life Insurance Corporation of

India (LIC) under its Group Gratuity Scheme. Every employee is entitled to a benefit

equivalent to fifteen days' salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with

the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from the

Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous

service. The Company pays contribution to Life Insurance Corporation of India to fund its

plan.

The following tables set out the disclosures in respect of the gratuity plan as required under

Ind AS 19.

i. Changes in the present value of the obligations

? In Lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the 16.12 . 12.06

year

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid (if any)

Actuarial (gain )/loss

Present value of the obligation at the end of the year

- Non Current

- Current

1.25

3.97

-0.43

-0.64

20.27

19.43

0.84

0.93

3.56

-

-0.43

16.12

15.76

0.36
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li. Changes in the fair value of the planned assets

In Lakhs

Particulars Year ended

31.03.2019

Year ended

31.03.2018

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Expected return on plan assets

Contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end .of the year

III. Amount recognised in Balance Sheet:

15.64

1.21

0.48

-0.43

-0.27

16.63

9.60

0.74

5.31

-

-0.01

15.64

In Lakhs

Particulars Year ended

31.03.2019

Year ended

31.03.2018

Present value of the obligation at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year

Net liability/(asset) recognised in Balance Sheet and

related analysis

Funded Status

iv. Actuarial Gain/Loss on Plan Assets

20.27

16.63

3.64

-3.64

16.12

15.64

0.48

-0.48

In Lakhs

Particulars Year ended

31.03.2019

Year ended

31.03.2018

Actual return on plan asset

Expected return on plan asset

Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on asset

v. Expenses Recognised in Profit & Loss:

0.94

1.21

-0.27

0.73

0.74

-0.01

Tin Lakhs

Particulars Year ended

31.03.2019

Year ended

31.03.2018

Interest cost

Current service cost

Past service cost

Expected return on plan asset

Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and loss

1.25

3.97

1.21

4.01

0.93

3.56

-0.74

3.75

vi. Other Comprehensive Income Recognised:

in Lakhs

Particulars Year ended

31.03.2019

Year ended

31.03.2018

Actuarial (gain) loss • obligation

Actuarial (gain) loss - plan assets

Total Actuarial (gain)Zloss

-0.64

0.27

-0.37

-0.43

0.01

-0.42
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vii. Investment Details of the Fund:

Particulars

LIC of India

Year ended

31.03.2019

16.63

viii. Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period

Particulars

Best estimate for contribution during

ix. Principal actuarial assumption at the

Particulars

Discount rate (Per Annum)

Salary Growth Rate (Per Annum)

Mortality

Withdrawal rate (Per Annum)

18-30 Years

30-44 Years

44-58 Years

Expected Average remaining

employees (years)

Method Used

x. The quantitative sensitivity analysis

significant assumptions:

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation (base)

Discount Rate

1.00% Increase

1.00% decrease

Future Salary Growth Rate

1.00% Increase

1.00% decrease

Year ended

31.03.2019

the next period 5.20

Balance Sheet Date

Year ended

31.03.2019

7.75%

7.00%

IALM

2006-08

Ultimate

5.00%

5.00%

5.00%

wonting lives of 23.70

Projected Unit

Credit

T In Lakhs

Year ended

31.03.2018

15.64

T in Lakhs

Year ended

31.03.2018

4.24

Year ended

31.03.2018

7.75%

7.00%

IALM

2006-08

Ultimate

5.00%

3.00%

2.00%

22.30

Projected Unit >■

Credit

on net liability recognised on account of change in

Year ended '

31.03.2019

20.27

i -1.60

1.84

1.84

j -1.62'
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16.12
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1.79
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41. Related parties disclosures

a. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Anurag Gupta. Managing Director

Mrs. Sapna Kansal. Whole-time Director w.e.f. 14.12.2017

Mr. MHhlesh Kumar Gupta. Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sudesh Kumar Garg. Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sandeep Sun, Non-Execulive (Director

Mr. Naveen Kansal, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shared Goel, Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Nikita Single, Company Secretary w.e.f. 01.02.2019

Mr. VerinderKamalSood. Company Secretary from 12.06.2018 to 31.01.2018

Ms. Manmeet Kaur Sihota, Company Secretary from 01.09.2017 lo 11.08.2018

Mrs. Tanu Sharma. Company Secretary up to 10.07.2017

ii. Enterprises over which key management personnel or relative of such personnel is able to

exercise significant influence:

Usha Yarns Limited

b. Related party transactions
T In Lakhs

Nature of transactions

Remuneration

Wr. Anurao Gupta

virs. Sapna Kansal

Mr. Navcen Kansal

Mr. Shared Goel

Mrs. Nikita Sincjla

Mr. Vecinder Kamal Sood

Ms. Manmeet Kaur Sihota

Mrs. Tanu Sharma

Total

Purchases of goods

(net of duties and taxes)

Usha Yarns Limited

Settlement of Liabilities on behalf

of the company

Usha Yarns Limited

Toial

For the year

ended 31.03.2019

Key

management

personnel

(KMP)

15.00

15.00

15.00

12.00

0.33

0.85

0.25

-

58.43

Enterprises

over which

there is

significant

nfluence

55.82

1.07

56.9C

For the year

ended 31.03.2018

Key

management

Dersonnel

;kmpj

10.79

4.48

15.00

11.03

-

■

0.78

0.33

42.39

Enterprises

over which

here is

significant

nfluence '

12.22

•

12.22

c. Sitting Fee* to Directors of the Company:
Tin Lakhs

Particulars
For the year

ended

31.03.2019

For the year

ended

31.03.2018

Mr. Mithiesh Kumar Gupta, Non-Executive Director 0.63 0.70

0.70Mr. Sudesh Kumar Gam. Non-Execulive Director 0.63

Mr. Sandeep Suri, Non-Executive Director 0.52

1.78

0.53

1.93
Total
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d. Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company:

En Lakhs

Particulars

Short-term Employee Benefils

Post-Retirement Benefits

Share-Based Payments

Other Lonq-term Benefits

Total Compensation

For the year

ended

31.03.2019

58.43

■

-

58.43

For the year

ended

31.03.2018

42.39

.

-

42.39

Notes:

i. ' Expenses towards gratuity provisions are determined actuarially on an overall Company basis al

the end of each year and, accordingly, have not been considered in the above information.

i Remuneration to KMP has been taken for the period which Ihey remain KMP.

e. Outstanding balance (Unsecured)

In Lakhs

Particulars

Usha Yams Limited

Total

As at

31.03.2019

-

-

As at

31.03.2018

-

Terms and conditions of transactions with Related Parties:

The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to

those that prevail in arm's length transactions. The above transactions are as per the approval of Audit

Committee.

The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parlies.

This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining Ihe financial posrlion of the related

party and the market in which the related party operates.

In terms ol our report on even date attached

for ROMESH K. AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 000711N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 30.05.2019

(RUCHIR SINGLA)

Partner

Membership No. 519347

(ANURAG GUPTA)

Managing Director

DIN-00192888

(N1KHIL GOEL)

Director

DIN-01741446

(SHARAD GOEL)

Chief Financial Officer

(NIKITA SINGLA)

CompanySecretary
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